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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER®E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”), |
am pleased to present the 2023 full year results to the shareholders
of Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and,
including subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we").

In 2023, under various market uncertainties and challenges, such
as global geo-political tension and slowdown of China’s economy,
the demand for corrugated packaging paper remained weak in
post-pandemic era. Due to slower than expected recovery of
domestic demand and export in Mainland China, together with
pessimistic economy sentiment in the globe, the Group continued
to face challenges and difficulties in recovering its profitability to
the pre-pandemic level.

The revenue of the Group's corrugated packaging business relies
mainly on Chinese domestic sales. With sluggish post-pandemic
economic recovery in Mainland China and shrinking domestic
demand in the corrugated paper industry, the Group's revenue kept
declining compared with year 2022.

Since October 2021, due to the consideration of the environmental
policies by the local government, the Group's upstream
containerboard business has been temporarily suspended.
Currently, the Group strives to communicate with the local
government to speed up the annual inspection procedures of
the licenses for the coal-fuel boilers. Meanwhile, pursuant to the
environmental policies of the local government, the Group has also
carried out the project to change its boilers from coal-fuel boilers
to gas-fuel boilers. The progress of the project is still ongoing. At
the same time, in order to ensure stable supply of containerboard
for the Group’s downstream corrugated packaging business, the
Group could purchase containerboard from third party suppliers.

The Group recorded a loss in 2023, compared to a more substantial
loss in 2022 due to lower gross profit margin and higher expenses
recognised for the financial year ended 31 December 2022. The
Group has taken effort to maintain a roster of quality clients and
strengthen the credit control management. As a result, the Group
continued with its track record of close to “zero” bad or doubtful
debts and the Group maintained low bank borrowings level at the
end of the financial year.
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During the year, given the geographical tension and fierce market
competition in the industry, the Directors decided to postpone the
process of installing a pulp production line at the manufacturing
plant in the Philippines and are expected to resume progress
between 2024 and 2025.

Looking forward, we expect the business environment of the
corrugated packaging industry remained challenging with tensing
geo-political relationship and sluggish global and domestic demand
in post-pandemic era. However, the Group will maintain good
capital management and low debt levels, in order to have greater
flexibility to cope with market volatility and seize opportunities
to further enhance the operational efficiency for its long-term
sustainable development.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
management team and staff, express my gratitude for their
solidarity in facing adversities and various challenges, and thank our
customers, suppliers, bankers and investors for their support over
the years. We will continue to strive to deliver better returns to our
shareholders.

Hui Sum Ping
Chairman
28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the first half of 2023, dragged by various unfavorable factors
such as weak economic activities and low customer sentiment
after pandemic in Mainland China, the Group's average selling price
and sales volume decreased, and revenue decreased by 56.1%
compared with the first half of 2022. In the second half of 2023,
the Group’s revenue in the second half of the year increased by
11.2% compared with the first half of the year, and decreased by
35.3% compared with the second half of 2022 and total revenue
decreased 47.1% for the year.

Since October 2021, the Group’'s upstream containerboard
business has been temporarily suspended. Currently, the Group
continues to coordinate with the local government for the annual
inspection procedures of the licenses for the coal-fuel boilers. At
the same time, the Group has carried out the project to change
its boilers from coal-fuel boilers to gas-fuel boilers pursuant to the
environmental policies of the local government. To ensure stable
supply for the Group’s downstream corrugated packaging business,
the Group purchases containerboard from third party suppliers.
There was no external revenue from upstream business in both
2023 and 2022.

Against the backdrop of high level of inflation and interest rate
around the globe, the costs of containerboard, which is the
Group’s main raw materials costs, put high pressure on the
Group. However, the Group is able to pass on part of the rising
containerboard costs to customers. As a result, the gross profit
margin has improved in 2023 compared with last year. Apart from
this, the Group has taken effort to strengthen the cost control
management and efficiency enhancement. Therefore, the Group
has recorded lower operating losses in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating results

The Group recorded a decrease of HK$200 million in revenue
in 2023, representing a fall of 47.1% from HK$424.4 million
in 2022 to HK$224.4 million in 2023. The drop in revenue was
mainly attributed to the decline in sales volume resulting from the
temporary suspension of production of Green Forest (QingXin)
Paper Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The closure of a factory in China led to a decrease in
sales volume of downstream business and decrease in revenue.

Cost of sales dropped from HK$417.0 million in 2022 to HK$210.4
million in 2023. The decrease in cost of sales was in line with
decrease in revenue.

Gross profit from HK$7.4 million in 2022 increased to HK$13.9
million in 2023. Gross profit margin changed from 1.7% to gross
profit margin of 6.2%. The increase in gross profit margin was
mainly due to decrease in the cost of materials outweighing the
decrease in revenue. Implementation of effective cost control
measures also contributed to the increase in gross profit margin.

Other income decreased from HK$10.9 million in 2022 to HK$6.7
million in 2023. Such decrease was mainly attributed to less bank
interest income and service income.

Other gains and losses changed from losses of HK$4.3 million in
2022 to gain of HK$4.5 million in 2023. The increase was mainly
due to the written off of accruals and payables of HK$20.9 million
and impairment loss on the deposit paid for the acquisition of
property, plant and machinery of HK$15.7 million.

Selling and distribution costs reduced by 33.6% from HK$18.8
million in 2022 to HK$12.5 million in 2023. The decrease was in line
with decrease in revenue.

Administrative expenses decreased by 48.0% from HK$90.5 million
in 2022 to HK$47.0 million in 2023. Such decrease was due to the
closure of the factory in China and was in line with decrease in
revenue.

Other expenses decreased from HK$90.0 million in 2022 to
HK$62.4 million in 2023. Such decrease was attributed to
value-added tax payments of HK$23.6 million paid in 2022 and
there was no value-added tax payment in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Finance costs decreased from HK$6.2 million in 2022 to HK$3.6
million in 2023. The decrease was owing to lower borrowing level
in 2023.

In 2023, HK$0.3 million was charged to income tax expenses,
representing Hong Kong Profits Tax charge of HK$0.4 million and
deferred tax credit of HK$0.02 million.

Loss for the year of HK$192.7 million was recorded in 2022
while loss for the year of HK$100.8 million was recorded in 2023,
representing a decrease in loss by HK$91.9 million. Net loss margin
decreased from 45.4% to 44.9%.

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank balances and cash
were HK$47.3 million (31 December 2022: HK$110.8 million),
mostly denominated in Renminbi.

Bank borrowings were decreased from HK$98.1 million at 31
December 2022 to HK$72.8 million at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the current bank borrowings increased by
HK$50.7 million while non-current bank borrowings fell by HK$76.0
million. The group recorded a net borrowings level (net of bank
balances and cash less total bank borrowings) of HK$25.6 million (31
December 2022: net cash level HK$12.7 million). Gearing ratio (total
bank borrowings to total equity) and net gearing ratio (net balance
of total bank borrowings less bank balances and cash to equity)
were 8.6% and 3.0% respectively (31 December 2022: 10.2% and
—1.3% respectively).

As at 31 December 2023, net current liabilities (2022: net current
assets) and current ratio of the Group were HK$24.1 million (31
December 2022: HK$85.7 million) and 0.84 (31 December 2022:
1.7) respectively. This was mainly due to a bank loan of HK$52.4
million which would be fully repaid in 2024.

In 2023, the Group spent HK$8.5 million on capital expenditures for
property, plant and equipment in China.
Debtors, creditors and inventory turnover were 62 days (2022:

43 days), 52 days (2022: 40 days) and 46 days (2022: 69 days)
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent liabilities

The details of the contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

OUTLOOK

Although the global economy has been gradually rebounding after
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the business environment
of the corrugated packaging industry was still challenging as the
pace of economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic was
slower than expected with tensing geo-political relationship and
deepening slump in China’s property market.

Going forward, the Group will strive to maintain low debt levels
and healthy balance sheet position to achieve good capital
management. In respect of business development, the Group will
complete the annual inspection procedures for the boilers license
and resume production for upstream business and this will make
the Group enjoy competitive advantage in vertical integration. The
Group will also focus on the key strategies of price rising power,
raising production efficiency and reduction on raw material wastage
to realize a turnaround from loss to profit in foreseeable future.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total workforce of
around 246 full time staff (2022: 360). Competitive remuneration
packages were offered to employees. The Group may also grant
share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees
based on the performance of the Group and individuals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REGARDING
THE QUALIFIED OPINION

The Company’s view and position as to the Audit
Qualification

The qualified opinion as disclosed in the independent auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 December 2023 (" Audit Qualification”)
is relating to uncertainties arising from assessment on whether
relevant tax payment amounts should be provided concerning the
Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice (as defined in note 30 of the
consolidated financial statements).

The information and explanations requested by the auditor of the
Company in relation to the Audit Qualification include:

(1

(2)

3)

the assessment of the Company’s management on whether
Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited (k3
(EENMEEARAT]) ("Green Forest Paper”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has an obligation
to pay the relevant tax amounts concerning the Decisions
and the Tax Matter Notice and the supportive evidence to it;

the view of the Company’'s management on whether it is
reasonable and appropriate that no provision of the relevant
tax amounts concerning the Decisions and the Tax Matter
Notice was made in the Company's consolidated financial
statements and the supportive evidence to it; and

a legal view from the Company’s PRC legal advisor on the
possible outcome of the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice
to show that it is not probable Green Forest Paper would
make the tax payments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The management position, view and assessment on the Audit
Qualification, and the differences between the management’s view
and the auditor’s view are described as below.

(M

The Group objected and has lodged appeals against the
Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice in accordance with the
relevant appeal mechanism. As at the date of the Result
Announcement, the court’s final decision on the obligations
of the Group was not available. Therefore, the Company's
management was not able to assess whether Green Forest
Paper has an obligation to pay the relevant tax amounts
concerning the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice.

With regard to the value-added tax and other taxes, the Group
applied the recognition criteria in accordance with the Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 37. Under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard ("HKAS") 37 IN2, a provision should be
recognised when and only when: (a) an entity has a present
obligation arising from past events; (b) it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and (c) reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Given the fact
that the Group is undergoing the appeal process in relation
to the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice, the Company's
management considered it is not probable to settle the tax
payments with the lack of factual and legal support from
the relevant tax bureau in Mainland China. As a result,
the Company has disclosed this as a contingent liability
under HKAS 37 IN18(b)(i) and IN19. However, the auditor
considered that there is no sufficient evidence, such as
there is no conclusive view from the PRC legal advisor under
the normal PRC legal practice, to support that no provision
should be made to the relevant tax amounts concerning the
Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice.

With regard to the corporate income tax, the Group applied
the recognition criteria in accordance with the HK(IFRIC)
Interpretation 23. Under paragraphs 9 and 10 of the
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23, an entity shall consider whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment and if an entity concludes it is probable that
the taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the entity shall determine the taxable profit (tax loss), tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates
consistently with the tax treatment used or planned to be
used in its income tax filings. Based on the reasons stated
in point (2) above, the Company’s management concluded it
is probable that the Group would be able to succeed in the
appeal actions, which in turn lead to the relevant tax bureau
in Mainland China eventually accepting the objections lodged
by the Group. As a result, no provision for corporate income
tax was made by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT

Although there were a number of supportive points analysed
by the Company’s PRC legal advisor in favour of the Group
in respect of appeals of the Decisions and the Tax Matter
Notice, the PRC legal advisor, under the normal PRC legal
practice, is not in a position to make a final conclusive view
on the outcome of the appeal actions, which is subject to the
decision of the courts.

The Company’s management is of the view that it is not
probable that the Group should pay the relevant tax amounts
based on the reasons that the Decisions and the Tax Matter
Notice are under appeal and no final decisions or orders
have been made by the relevant courts and the analysis of
the PRC legal advisor. As such, the Group disclosed these
matters as contingent liabilities under HKAS 37. However,
the Company's auditor has different views from the above
assessment of the Company’s management. The Company's
auditor considered the lack of a final decision and a final
conclusive view of the PRC legal advisor was not sufficient
for the management’s view to base on.

Audit committee’s view on the Audit Qualification

)

The Audit Committee has critically reviewed the relevant
information provided by the Company’'s management
concerning the Audit Issues and is of the view that since
the Group has, in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations, appealed the cases and pending the appeal
decisions, no provision should be made under relevant Hong
Kong Accounting Standards unless an irrevocable decision
has been made by the courts in Mainland China.

The Company's auditor also reported and discussed the Audit
Issues with the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
confirmed with the Company's auditor that they have
reviewed and agreed with the Board's and management's
position and basis of assessment concerning the Audit
Issues. The Audit Committee also agreed and accepted the
Audit Issues under the existing circumstances despite the
best effort has been done by the Company during the year.

Impact of the Audit Qualification on the Group’s
consolidated financial position

Company'’s view

Based on the PRC legal advisor's experience and best estimate,
such administrative court cases would normally not last long but is
not under control of the Company. The Company expects that the
decision will be released by the court before 31 December 2024,
which in turn will resolve the Audit Issues.

The board of directors (including the audit committee) considers
that if the court decision can be released in 2024, the uncertainties
concerning the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice could be clear
accordingly, which in turn will resolve the Audit Issues.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Auditor’s view

The Company’s auditor is not able to confirm whether the Audit
Qualification could be removed for the financial year ending 31
December 2024 given that the Group could not provide a concrete
timeline as to when the matters concerning the Decisions and the
Tax Matter Notice could be settled with the relevant tax bureau.
The auditor considers that in the event that the action plans to be
implemented by the Company to resolve the Audit Issues can be
materialized successfully, the relevant audit modifications would be
able to be removed accordingly.

The Company’s action plan to address the Audit
Qualification and the implementation of such plan

In the prior year, as in accordance with the plan, the Company has
been working closely with the PRC legal advisor on the progress
of the appeal actions and took appropriate steps and actions to
obtain the court decisions timely. However, the release of the
court decisions is out of the Group's control. Based on the PRC
legal advisor’s experience and best estimate, the decisions will be
released by the courts before 31 December 2024.

In the next financial year, the Company will continue to work
closely with the PRC legal advisor on the appeal actions. As
advised by the PRC legal advisor, it is expected the court decision
will be released in 2024. The Company’s management is of the
view that the Audit Issues are principally due to the different view
of the Company’'s management and its auditor because of the
unavailability of a final court decision. If the final court decision with
respect to the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice is received,
the Company’s management expects that such difference, and
therefore the Audit Issues will be removed. In the meantime, the
Group obtained a letter of intent from one of the principal banks to
provide the Group with sufficient financial support to ensure the
solvency of the Group in the worst event that the Group is liable to
all the tax payments/penalties.

Impact of the Audit Qualification on internal control of
the Group

In light of the Audit Qualification, the Board is of the view that the
causes of the various tax issues were not due to significant internal
control deficiencies with the following basis.

The waste paper product purchase made from the Suppliers
were genuine. Also, the Group had paid up the respective total
price of the waste paper products under the VAT Invoices, and
had received the waste paper products with proper approval
procedures. The management of Green Forest Paper at that time
believed appropriate taxation arrangement has been made with the
Suppliers under normal business practice in Mainland China.

The directors of the Company, and the management of Green
Forest Paper who were responsible for the Tax Deduction, had no
knowledge of any irregular circumstances under which such VAT
Invoices were issued.

The management of Green Forest Paper obtained the irregular
VAT Invoices from the Suppliers and made the Tax Deduction due
to mere inadvertence and the Board is of the view that it has no
intention to evade tax, and does not involve any fraud, dishonesty
or corruption on the part of the Directors or management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Enhanced Internal Control Measures

The Company has taken enhanced internal control measures on
both the entity level and activity level since last year. The Company
will continue to carry out enhanced internal control measures in this
year. These measures include:

Entity level

(i) strengthening of review and monitoring procedures of
factory in respect of approvals, payments and corporate tax
treatments by senior officers;

(i) provision of training to directors and senior management; and

(i) regular evaluation on effectiveness and efficiency of internal
control system and risk management of factory.

Activity level

(i) reviewing performance of procurement and tax handling
teams;

(i) enhancing reporting channels to timely report significant
issues from the subsidiaries and encouraging staff to report
any unusual activity;

(i) providing training to staff, especially those staff who are
involved in handling payments to suppliers with value-added
tax invoices; and

(iv)  reviewing procedures and process of procurement of
materials to align with the market best practices.

Recent updates on the status about various tax issues
of Green Forest Paper

Capitalised terms used below shall have the same meanings as
those defined in note 30 of the consolidated financial statements.

1. Tax issue about value-added tax invoices received from
certain suppliers

The Tax Treatment Decision

The Group filed an appeal against the aforesaid judgement at
the Intermediate People’s Court of Qingyuan City, Guangdong
Province (BR&E &M HARARER) (“Intermediate Court”).
Pursuant to the judgement dated 5 July 2023 from the
Intermediate Court, the Intermediate Court concluded that
the appeal was rejected, and the administrative judgement
dated 19 April 2023 was upheld.

On 10 August 2023, the Group filed a retrial application
against the judgement dated 5 July 2023 at Guangdong
Higher People’s Court, Guangdong Province (BHRAE &HA
EJABR) (“Higher People’s Court”). On 14 August 2023, the
Higher People's Court accepted the Group's retrial application
and will proceed with the retrial hearing if it considers the
case meets the grounds and conditions for retrial after the
verification procedures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Up to the date of the consolidated financial statements,
the Higher People’'s Court was still processing the retrial
application.

The Group has obtained a letter of intent from one of the
Group's principal banks confirming to provide the Group with
financial support. The Group will ensure its solvency if in case
of an unfavour appeal result and the Group has to bear all the
tax payments and late fee under the Tax Treatment Decision.

The Tax Penalty Decision

Pursuant to the administrative judgement dated 30 June 2023
from the Guangzhou Railway Transport Court, the decision
of administrative review made by the Guangdong Province
Tax Bureau on 8 November 2022 to uphold the Tax Penalty
Decision shall be revoked, but the Guangdong Province Tax
Bureau has the right to appeal within 15 days from the date
of the judgement.

The Group subsequently received a summons from the
Guangzhou Railway Transport Intermediate Court (B
S ER R AUEPE) dated 2 November 2023, in which the
Guangdong Province Tax Bureau filed an appeal against the
administrative judgement dated 30 June 2023. The appeal
hearing was held on 13 November 2023, and no order was
made from the court up to the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

Tax Matter Notice

Green Forest Paper made an application for tax payment
guarantee on 28 February 2023 and obtained confirmation
from Qingxin Tax Bureau about the acceptance of the tax
payment guarantee on 23 March 2023.

On 7 April 2023, Green Forest Paper disagreed with the Tax
Matter Notice and applied for an administrative review with
Qingxin Tax Bureau.

On 2 June 2023, the State Administration of Taxation
Qingyuan City Qingxin District Taxation Bureau (BIZXF#%
ERERMETRIBEE) issued an administrative review
decision stating that the Qingyuan Tax Bureau shall revoke
the Tax Matter Notice and re-handle it in accordance with the
applicable laws.

There was no further development with regard to the Tax
Matter Notice as at the date of the consolidated financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEEBE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, aged 62, is the chairman of the Board, an
executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the Group.
Mr. Hui is responsible for the business development and overall
corporate planning of the Group. Mr. Hui has over 39 years of
experience in the corrugated packaging industry in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company). Mr. Hui is a
brother-in-law of Mr. Tsui Yung Wai (a senior management of the
Company). Mr. Hui did not hold any other directorship in companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, aged 57, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hui has joined the Group
since its establishment and is responsible for the strategic planning
and day-to-day management of the Group. Mr. Hui has over 37
years of experience in the corrugated packaging industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Ping (chairman of
the Board and executive Director of the Company). Mr. Hui is a
brother-in-law of Mr. Tsui Yung Wai (a senior management of the
Company). Mr. Hui did not hold any other directorship in companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cContinued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Sze Wai, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. In June 1995, Mr. Tso graduated from the University of
New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
majoring in accounting. In April 2001, he received a graduate
diploma in business computing from the University of Western
Sydney, Australia. Mr. Tso has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2015.

Mr. Tso has over 20 years of experience in accounting, corporate
finance and corporate secretarial matters. Since July 2021, he has
been an independent non-executive Director and chairman of the
audit committee of China Asia Valley Group Limited (HKEX stock
code: 0063), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of the Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Since July 2020, he has served as an independent non-executive
Director and chairman of the audit committee of Net Pacific
Financial Holdings Limited (SGX: 5QY), a company listed on the
Catalist Board of the Singapore Exchange Limited (the “Singapore
Exchange”). From June 2020 to August 2021, he served as an
independent non-executive Director and chairman of the audit
committee of KTL Global Limited (SGX: EB7), a company listed on
the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange. From December 2021 to
March 2022, he served as an independent non-executive Director
and chairman of the audit committee of C-Link Squared Limited,
(HKEX stock code: 14683), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He has been an independent non-executive
Director of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code:
1027), Willas-Array Electronics (Holdings) Limited (HKEX Stock
Exchange: 854) a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Saved as disclosed above, Mr. Tso did not hold any
other directorship in companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in
the last 3 years.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEEBE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wong Chu Leung, aged 76, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wong has over 39 years of experience in enterprise
management and manufacturing operation management. Mr. Wong
is a shareholder and a director of a metal ware manufacturing
company with manufacturing plant located in the PRC.

Mr. Wong does not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the Company.
Mr. Wong did not hold any other directorship in companies listed in
Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Chau Suk Ming, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chau is a retired businessman with more than 17 years of
experience in the corrugated packaging industry. Mr. Chau was a
shareholder and a director of a corrugated packaging company with
manufacturing plant located in the PRC.

Mr. Chau does not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the Company.
Mr. Chau did not hold any other directorship in companies listed in
Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsui Yung Wai, aged 61, is the general manager of the Group.
Mr. Tsui is responsible for the supervision of procurement, logistics
and human resources of the Group. Mr. Tsui has over 28 years of
experience in corrugated packaging industry in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Prior to joining the Group in February 2008, Mr. Tsui was a
shareholder and a director of a corrugated packaging company.

Mr. Tsui is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hui Sum Ping (chairman of the

Board and executive Director of the Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Tai
(executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards to safeguard the interests of shareholders and enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of the Company’'s corporate
governance practices.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework and
has established a set of policies and procedures based on the CG
Code contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules. Such policies
and procedures provide the infrastructure for enhancing the Board's
ability to implement governance and exercise proper oversight on
business conduct and affairs of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG Code.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for code provisions
C.2.1,D.3.3and E.1.2.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBME

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company's securities (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code and the Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
"Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model
Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be

in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five Directors, consisting of two
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors
as follows:

Executive Directors

Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

Hui Sum Ping
Hui Sum Tai

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tso Sze Wai Chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee

Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Wong Chu Leung

Chau Suk Ming

The relationships between the Directors, if any, are disclosed under
“Management Profile” on pages 16 to 18.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has implementable and effective mechanism to
ensure independent views and inputs are available to the Board,
with the following key features: (i) the Nomination Committee
is established with clear terms of reference to identify suitable
candidates, including Independent Non-executive Directors, for
appointment as Directors; (i) the Nomination Committee will
assess annually the independence of all Independent Non-executive
Directors; and (iii) the Directors are entitled to seek, at the Group's
expense, independent professional advice reasonably necessary
for discharging their duties as Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the mechanism and considered it to be effective.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board and business development.
The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s strategic
planning and daily management and operations generally.

The Board considers that the responsibilities of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer respectively are clear and distinctive
and hence, written terms thereof are not necessary. This deviates
from the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates
that the division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all
appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 and paragraph 12B of the Appendix D2
to the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

TEERBE

EEg @)

ARBRBAPTREBRNOEHARREETSAIES
BUBRRER IEFHOT (EXRIREEES
HBEEERE UNetEAR (BREBUIFNTE
R)EGRRES  (MREZEEREFIEMABULIF
WITEENBE LN MIIZEFERSKAELENE
VEEER G BRABAANKEAE  UWEITEE/ESH
BE HE-_ZT_=F+_A=T—BILLFE EFg
ERAZEHNERIER MR BREAR

ERRITBAR

FTRERITBREB 2B AFRFELERTRRL
EEM EREEREERVEAEEFTE A WEER
BEEESNEREE -THEAHETEAEARARAIZE
EiRE -  BEEER—REE -

EEeRA TRATBRERSEZBRENARELHR
HERE  MBANEEE Y ME 2 BIERE - IR REE
RETRZ TR EC2.116G  ZIEXRTERBEL
BIEETFEETHRER CBESRE  WAZEEIL -

BUFHTES

RBRE-Z-_=F+_"A=+—HIFE %7
B R AREIRL BB IENTEE I RE
HER=S2z—EEGKE  MEF—BBUIERNTE
HEABAEEEE SRS TNEENEEREER -

RARERE LT AR BIK $2D253.1315 R F12BE BT
ZENIEIES| BB IERITERREEERE B
VEZFEEERR c ARARABEEBIINITES
HBEBIAT

SEEEERBRAR o —T-=—FFR

21



22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Director

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of around two years, subject to
renewal after the expiry of the current term.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The Company's Articles
of Association provides that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management (Continued)

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.
According to the code provision D.1.2 of part 2 of the CG Code, the
management shall provide all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has provided all members of the Board monthly updates
of financial, compliance and operation matters to enhance the
corporate governance of the Group and provide more adequate and
complete information to the Board in a timely manner.
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TEERBME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction and legal
advice on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director's responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits to the
Company's key plant sites and meetings with senior management
of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development (“CPD") to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged
and reading materials on relevant topics would be provided to
Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant external training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company organized
two in-house briefings on updates on Listing Rules and related
matters for all Directors. In addition, relevant reading materials
including compliance manual, legal and regulatory update and
seminar handouts have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying.

The records of CPD relating to Director's duties and regulatory and
business development that have been received by the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are summarized as follows:
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Directors Type of Training'°* B=E IR
Executive Directors HiTEE

Hui Sum Ping Aand B AR AXB

Hui Sum Tai Aand B TR AKB
Independent Non-executive Directors HUINTESE

Tso Sze Wai Aand B R4 AXB

Wong Chu Leung Aand B BT AKB

Chau Suk Ming Aand B JE A AKB
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
(Continued)

Note:
Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars,
conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and
relevant publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Wong Chu
Leung and Mr. Chau Suk Ming. Mr. Tso Sze Wai is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of the
internal audit function, scope of audit and appointment of external
auditor, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.
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TEERBME

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review, in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2023, the interim and annual financial
results and reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit
function, re-appointment of external auditor and engagement of
non-audit services and relevant scope of works.

Since the company has not engaged its auditor to review the
financial information in its interim report, the Audit Committee has
met with the Company’s auditor once to discuss matters arising
from the audit of the Company’s annual results and other matters
the auditor may wish to raise during the year ended 31 December
2023. This deviates from the code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the audit committee must meet, at least
twice a year, with company’s auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai,
Mr. Wong Chu Leung and Mr. Chau Suk Ming. Mr. Tso Sze Wai is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year to
review the Directors’ remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors,
remuneration of the Non-executive Directors, and the New Share
Option Scheme and recommend it to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Currently, the remuneration of the senior management is attended
by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
This deviates from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the remuneration committee should make
recommendations to the board on company’s policy and structure
for all the directors’ and senior management remuneration.

Details of the remuneration paid to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out below:
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Number of senior

management
Remuneration band 4 Bl BREEEHE
HK$0-HK$ 1,000,000 0/87CE 1,000,000 7T 3

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Wong Chu
Leung and Mr. Chau Suk Ming. Mr. Tso Sze Wai is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would consider a number of aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.
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TEERBME

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company's competitive
advantage. The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy. The
particulars of the Board Diversity Policy of the Company are set out
as follows:

1. The Nomination Committee will review annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

2. In reviewing and assessing the Board diversity, a number
of aspects and factors will be considered, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge of industry and
regional experience.

3. The Nomination Committee will discuss and where
necessary, agree on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and make recommendation to the
Board for adoption.

4. The Nomination Committee will assess regularly the diversity
profile of the Board and the progress on achieving diversity
objectives, if any.

b. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy as appropriate and recommend revisions, if any, to the
Board for consideration and approval.

As of the date of this annual report, none of the Company's director
is female. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Company aims to
appoint at least one female director. The Board is committed to
improving the diversity of the Board and will achieve the above
objectives by 31 December 2024. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had a total of 64 female staff out of 246 employees,
representing 26% of the employees of the Group. Besides, the
Group will continue to take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female board members and workforce over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified. Further details on the gender
ratio of the Group together with relevant data can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

The Board and the Nomination Committee have reviewed the

implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and
considered it to be effective for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Director Nomination Policy in
order to (i) set out the criteria and process in the nomination
and appointment of directors of the Company; (ii) ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and (iii) ensure the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

° Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to
the Company'’s business and corporate strategy.

° Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

° Independence.

° Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a director.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company's business, succession plan, etc.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee will evaluate the
candidates based on the prescribed criteria, rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable) and
recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship, as applicable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

4.

For re-election of retiring director, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the prescribed criteria
and make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review regularly the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
for selection and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, training and CPD of the Directors and the senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2023

EEZEE 4
REZEES (&)
EFEAHE(E)

4. BEERIEF REZECERIRIESRYH
ARBMERBERMERYE  UREEFENSHE
BERKRE BEREFEFROTMANSE LE
AIERERAG LEREENREARREHLZE

=3
A ©

5. REZESKSTHARERER BRERIEE
ABETTIRN  WEARERNEZGIRLEBITE
FOURERRAZCERBINEEBRE -

EEECRIARAZEERABRRELESR EFKD
RERB BN RBFEERER  ARAEETED R
EERECBRRESR BTRETIREEE@EES
ARETEETARRAEERERREPIELORE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, the Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the table
below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/&R8A
Annual Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration Nomination General General
Board  Committee =~ Committee = Committee Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EZnE EZe ENZEE FHZEE REZEE RREFAE RRBHAE
Hui Sum Ping FRT 44 NAFER NATER  NATER 171 7
Hui Sum Tai IH%R v N/ATE N/AT 8 N/ATiE A ”n n
Tso Sze Wai ER% 4/4 2/2 17 1 11 1
Wong Chu Leung /e 44 22 1 n 1 11
Chau Suk Ming &R EA a4 2/2 n " n n
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held KRFEHEZgegzI)N REE-_E_=F+_A=+—

meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Independent Non-executive Directors have attended the annual
general meeting to gain and develop a balanced understanding of
the view of shareholders.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems (Continued)

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority for
implementation by key business processes and office functions
including project management, sales and leasing, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The Company’s risk assessment processes are summarized as
follows:

All divisions/departments conduct internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business
of the Group and various aspects including key operational and
financial processes, regulatory compliance and information security.
Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each division/department.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads,
assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment
plans, and monitors the risk management progress, and has
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to
resolve material internal control defects

The management has reported to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the year ended 31 December 2023, and considered
that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review
also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

Code provision D.2.9 of the CG Code states that, as a
recommended best practice, the Board may disclose details of any
significant areas of concern on its risk management and internal
control systems. In respect of the impact of the Audit Qualifications
on internal control of the Group, as set out in management
discussion and analysis on pages in relation to 13 and 14, the Board
is of the view that the causes of the various tax issues were not
due to internal control deficiencies and the Company has taken a
number of enhanced internal control measures on both the entity
level and activity level.

Information Disclosure Policy

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company's Directors, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control
procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 78 to 83.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements mentions that the
Group incurred consecutive losses attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$100,804,000 and HK$192,725,000
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively,
and as at 31 Decembers 2023 the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$24,137,000. In addition, as disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has significant
amounts of contingent liabilities in relation to the tax payment
demanded by the tax bureau in the PRC. In the event that the
potential obligation becomes materialized, the Group may not
have sufficient cash and bank balances, which amounted to
approximately HK$47,272,000 as at 31 December 2023, to fulfil the
obligations. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

For the purpose of assessing going concern, the directors of the
Company have prepared a cash flow forecast of the Group covering
a period of twelve months from the end of the reporting period (the
"Cash Flow Forecast”) with plans and measures to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position. In addition,
the Group obtained the letter of intent from one of the principal
bankers after the reporting period, under which loan facilities up
to a maximum amount of approximately RMB300,000,000 are
available to the Group for not less than twelve months from 31
December 2023. Based on the letter of intent and Cash Flow
Forecast assuming the plans and measures can be successfully
implemented as scheduled, the Directors are of the opinion that
the Group is able to continue as a going concern and would have
sufficient financial resources to finance the Group’s operations
and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable/paid to the external auditor
of the Group, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below:
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Fees Payable/Paid

Service Category R R Ef/BNEAR
HK$

BT

Audit Services BZR 1,500,000
Non-audit Services e 1% AR5 -
1,500,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Ming Chun was removed as the company secretary of
the Company on 19 March 2024. Mr. Chan Wai Man was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company on 19 March 2024.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and also a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan has experiences
in auditing, taxation and finance. Mr. Chan is an independent
non-executive director of Luxking Group Holdings Limited, which
is listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited (Trading code: BKK)
an independent non-executive director of Sunny Side Up Culture
Holdings Limited, which is listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 8082).

The company secretary is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters and also facilitates induction and professional
development of the directors. The company secretary reports to
the Chairman of the Board. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. The company secretary
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs and is also
responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are
observed. During the reporting period, the company secretary had
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of the corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions. The Company endeavours to maintain an
on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings.

The Chairman of the Board, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their
delegates) will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
amended its Articles of Association on 5 June 2023. Details of
the amendments are set out in the circular of the Company dated
28 April 2023. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association
is available on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under Article 58 of the Company's Articles of Association, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of
the Company under the Company'’s Articles of Association and the
Cayman Islands Companies Law. Shareholders who wish to put
forward proposals at general meeting may refer to the preceding
paragraph to make a written requisition to require the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are published on the
Company's website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Workshops E, F and H, 22nd Floor

Superluck Industrial Centre (Phase 2)

No. 57 Sha Tsui Road and

Nos. 30-38 Tai Chung Road, Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chief Executive Officer/
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2414 5508

Email: hopfung@hopfunggroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The Company has reviewed the Shareholders’
Communication Policy and considered that the policy was
effectively implemented with the measures as disclosed under
paragraphs headed “Communications with Shareholders and
Investors” and “Shareholder Rights” during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy pursuant to code provision
F.1.1 of the CG Code which aims at setting out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to
the shareholders of the Company as follows:

° In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value.

o The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.
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POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the
Articles of Association of the Company and all applicable laws
and regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of
the Group when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

financial results;

cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;

future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;

interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

O O O O 0O O O O

Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out above,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for
a financial year or period:

interim dividend;

final dividend;

special dividend; and

any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

O O O O

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate.

Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to
the Company in accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association.
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SCOPE

The reporting period for this Environmental, Social and
Governance report of the Group is from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023. It includes the Group’s main business of
corrugated paper board and product marketing across China.
This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Information regarding the Group’s corporate governance
structure and practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Company's
ESG strategy and reporting. The Company has established
a ESG work group comprised of senior management and
staff members with adequate knowledge on ESG. The ESG
working group facilitates the Board's oversight of ESG-related
issues and has the responsibility for collecting and analysing
ESG data, monitoring and evaluating the Group's ESG
performance, ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws
and regulations, and preparing ESG reports. The ESG
working group arranges meeting periodically to discuss and
review ESG-related issues including but not limited to the
effectiveness of current Group's performance, ESG policies
and procedures, ESG-related performance, as well as the
progress made against the Group’'s ESG-related goals and
targets in terms of sustainable development. The ESG
working group reports to the Board periodically and assists
the Board to discharge its oversight responsibility.

The Group has applied the following reporting principles in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
as follows:

Materiality: A materiality assessment was conducted during
the reporting period to identify significant issues, and the
identified significant issues were listed as the focus of the
preparation of this Environmental, Social and Governance
report. The significance of the relevant issues has been
reviewed and confirmed by the Board of Directors.

Quantitative: This Environmental, Social and Governance
report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide, and the key
performance indicators (“Key Performance Indicators”) are
disclosed in a quantitative manner. This report explains,
where appropriate, the relevant standards, methods,
assumptions and/or information referenced for calculations,
as well as the main sources of conversion factors used for
Key Performance Indicators.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE (Continued)

Balance: This Environmental, Social and Governance report
is prepared in an objective and fair manner to ensure that the
information disclosed fairly reflects the overall environmental,
social and governance performance of the Group.

Consistency: The statistical methods used in this
Environmental, Social and Governance report are generally
consistent with those used last year to allow for meaningful
comparisons. Any changes that affect comparison with
the previous report will be explained in the corresponding
sections of this Environmental, Social and Governance report.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Materiality assessment is carried out by discussing the
environmental, social and governance expectations and
feedback of key stakeholders in order to understand their
views, carefully consider and respond to their needs and
expectations, evaluate and prioritize their feedback on
improving performance and ultimately strive to create value
for stakeholders. Effective risk management and internal
control systems in these areas have been strengthened with
the aim of improving operational efficiency and delivering
environmental and social benefits to stakeholders.

The Company's annual general meeting and/or other general
meetings (if any) have provided an effective platform for
the Board of Directors and shareholders to exchange
insights. Apart from general meetings, in order to maintain
a close relationship with the stakeholders, such as clients
and suppliers, the Company would seek the opinions and
understand the needs of the stakeholders through visits,
telephone conferences, e-mails, follow-ups from customer
service, questionnaires and other ways on a regular basis.
The Group's overall performance would also be reported to
the investors through this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE

3.1 Environment

The Group endeavors to minimize energy consumption
through its operation, reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and waste emission in order to minimize its
impact on the environment. The Group strengthens
its management in energy conservation and emission
reduction and infiltrated such practices into its various
operations.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.1 Environment (Continued)

3.1.1 Emissions

Non-Hazardous Waste Minimization

Minimizing waste generation from its source,
reusing and recycling waste before disposal are
the principles addressed by the Group’s waste
management policy.

As for waste control, in order to minimize
environmental impact, the Group devotes itself
to reducing waste. The Group has established a
set of fixed control procedures for wastes, and
has required each department to assort wastes
for collection and store any wastes generated.
The recycled wastes including scrap metal, scrap
pallets, scrap powder bag and waste plastic
barrel are collected and reprocessed by qualified
licensed collectors. In addition, the Group's
factory also recycles waste paper bags and tubes
as renewable resources to reduce the amount of
non-hazardous waste.

Hazardous Waste Minimization

The Group has strictly implemented the
“Cleaner Production Promotion Law"” of the
People's Republic of China and the relevant
provisions which increase the efficiency of the
utilization rate of resources, reduce and avoid
the generation of pollutants and protect and
improve the environment. In the procurement
of raw materials, non-toxic, harmless and
environmentally friendly materials should be
selected to minimize the generation of hazardous
waste.
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.1

Environment (Continued)

3.1.1 Emissions (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERHRE

BRE HEREARRR @)

3.1.1 HHY (&)

Hazardous Waste Minimization (Continued) L HEREEY (E)
Figure | -
Total Annual Emissions (tonnes)
FEAHEHRE (M)
Types of Wastes BEYESR 2023 2022
—s-= —E-=
Hazardous Waste BEBEEYD - 2
Non-hazardous Waste EmEREYD - -
Waste Intensity per Employee
(tonnes/person)
THEBNEEMEEEEYERE
(W8, A)
2023 2022
Type of Wastes BEYESR —E=F —E_—
Hazardous Waste BEREY - 0.01
Non-hazardous Waste MERFEY) - -
Hazardous Waste EEEEY

During the reporting period, the Group did not
produce material amounts of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.

Reduction in Atmospheric Emissions

The Group utilized clean energy as fuel, with
carbon dioxide and water vapor as the main
emissions.

Natural gas boilers use clean energy as fuel
(natural gas). There is no waste residue that
needs to be stored, which can save space. The
thermal efficiency of gas boilers reaches about
95%. Reducing the waste of fuel can save
energy. Gas boilers do not produce hazardous
gases and soot during operation, which alleviates
air pollution. Using this facility will result in more
complete combustion, with very little dust in the
flue gas, reducing environmental pollution and
ensuring that air pollutants are discharged up to
standard.
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.1

Environment (Continued)

3.1.1 Emissions (Continued)

Packaging Material

During the reporting period, the use of packaging
material was immaterial.

Reduction Emission of Greenhouse Gases
("GHG")

Reduction of Business Trips

The Group understands that business trips
increase energy consumption and lead to an
increase in GHG emissions. The group uses other
effective means of communication to reduce
GHG emissions that arise from additional traffic,
including using phone and/or video conferencing,
and encouraging employees to use public
transport.

Procurement from Local Suppliers

Under the same business conditions (e.g. cost,
quality, technology and services, environmental
and other factors), the Group would give priority
to local suppliers to reduce delivery distance and
its resulting carbon emissions.

Control of Indoor Air Quality

Smoking is prohibited in the Group's factory
and the offices to maintain good air quality. The
Hong Kong office has been equipped with air
freshening machine and ventilation system to
improve air quality.
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R HERERHRE

3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. RE -HERERRRA@®
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.1

Environment (Continued) 31 &R

3.1.1 Emissions (Continued) 3.1.1 #HHY (&)

Reduction Emission of Greenhouse Gases
("GHG ") (Continued)

Control of Indoor Air Quality (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group has
strictly complied with the relevant environmental
protection regulations and no violation of
environmental protection regulations was found.
The sources and emission volumes of GHG
generated during the period were as follows:

WA ERAE ([ ERAES) B ()

ENEREREH (E)

ReRE A - SEEE B AR R
BREER  WEERRRZEN - H
AP EE SR = RUES BV OR S BERLE A0
T

Figure Il B=
Amount
HE
GHG Emissions Sources BERBBERRIR 2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
Direct emissions (Scope 1)(“tCO,e") B (EE)
(M= tixE£]) 54.67 54.07
Indirect emissions (Scope 2)(“tCO,e") FFEZ PR (FE2)
(rumﬁ—”%{tﬁﬁ”‘gb 1,524.76 20.71
Total GHG emissions (tonnes carbon BERBERRE (WM _at
dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e") mEs((M-_amEs]) 1,579.43 74.78
GHG emission intensity per employee  FHYHMEEMESAE
(tCO,e/person) RAEE TR E (W8 — AL hx
EE2,/A) 8.73 0.89

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to reduce
GHG emissions, it has set a target of maintaining
its total GHG emissions intensity to be not more
than the 2022 baseline.

AR LB AR ER B HERAERS
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.1

Environment (Continued)

3.1.2 Use of Resources

The Group’'s business belongs to green
industry. Thus considerable attention is paid to
environmental protection to ensure reasonable
and efficient use of energy and resources.

Energy Conservation Measure

Basically, the Group is only equipped with
low-power electrical equipment with less power
consumption to reduce carbon emission. In the
procurement process of electrical appliances,
priority is given to energy-saving products such
as refrigerators and washing machines which had
grade 1 label of energy-saving logos.

Gradually all light bulbs have been replaced by
LED luminaires to reduce energy consumption.
They also reduce the generation of harmful waste
by replacing traditional luminaires with shorter life
cycle. According to the energy saving policies,
lighting devices, air-conditioners and printers are
temporarily switched off during lunch time to
preserve energy.

Furthermore, the air-conditioning system has
been set to operate only during business hours
with temperature maintained at a reasonable level
(e.g. 25 degrees Celsius). Energy consumption
in 2023 was at approximately the same level as
in 2022. Apart from facility control, energy-saving
slogans have been posted at office entrances.

Water Conservation Measure

With regard to the use of water resources,
the Group has carried out regular inspection to
reduce water consumption. At the same time it
formulates monitoring control whereby abnormal
water consumption will be investigated. Water
conservation slogans are also posted to raise
employee awareness of water conservation and
to remind employees and visitors to conserve
water.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3.
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

BRE HEREARRR (&)

3.1 Environment (Continued) 31 BEE)

312 EREH (&)

3.1.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

Water Conservation Measure (Continued)

In FY2023, the Group did not face any problems
in sourcing water fit for its purpose.

In the process of manufacturing corrugated
paper boards, many production sections
consume relatively large amounts of water. @
Clean water during boiler operation; ® \Washing
wastewater from the cardboard production line;
® Condensation wastewater from the cardboard
line; ® Rainwater is collected in a unified manner.
The wastewater is processed by the recycling
system to meet standards and supplied to the
fabric beating room for beating or factory toilets
to reduce wastewater generation and water
consumption. Technical transformation of the
equipment in the factory has been carried out
to increase the water reuse rate and reduce the
discharge of waste water.

Office Resource Conservation

The Group actively promotes electronic
documentation to implement the concept of a
paperless office. Computer files are used instead
of hardcopies to reduce the use of paper in
offices. The Group also encourages employees to
adopt other recognized management practices to
avoid excessive use of resources by the Group’s
offices such as (1) re-usable eating utensils
instead of disposable ones, (2) using single-side
printed paper as draft paper, (3) encouraging
double-side printing, (4) collecting waste office
paper for recycling, and (5) collecting and
returning empty ink cartridges to the qualified
licence suppliers for recycling. Concurrently,
those scrap paper and confidential documents
must be shredded and stored at the recycling
station, and finally passed to the qualified licence
recyclers on a regular basis.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

3. BE HEREAXRR@@

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.1 Environment (Continued)

3.1.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

During the reporting period, the key resources

312 EREH (&)

RBERR KSEXBERNETEE

consumed in the Group's operations were JREL AT
summarized as follows:
Figure lll B=
Total Annual Consumption
FEHAERE

Resources BiR 2023 2022

—E-=5F =S
Electricity (kWh) BN (TERF) 2,686,476.2 50,621
Water (cubic metre) K (325 2K) 28,803 -
Figure IV Py

Consumption Intensity

per employee
BUEEHEERE

Resources ER 2023 2022

—EBC-=F =
Electricity (kWh/person) (Note 1) BH(TEREA) () 14,842.4 602.63
Water (cubic metre/person) IK(SZHKSN) 159.13 -
Note: s
1. The data of electricity consumption only refers to 1. WEZENFERENEBINEE NH

the volume of purchases from outsiders. i o

To reinforce the Group's commitment to efficient
energy use, the Group has set a target of
maintaining its electricity consumption intensity
to be not more than the 2022 baseline.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3.
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

BE -HEREERR @)

3.1 Environment (Continued) 31 BEE)

3.1.3 The Environment and Natural Resources B13REREAELER

The Group understands the concerns of our
society on environmental issues; thus, it has
implemented the following green manufacturing
and green procurement policies:

Green Procurement Policy

As the main material for production of the Group
is recycled waste paper, it should be non-toxic
and non-hazardous. The Group requires suppliers
to provide a Restriction of Hazardous Substances
(ROHS) test report annually to ensure that their
products meet the environmental protection
requirement.

Green Manufacturing Policy

The Group is committed to reducing its impact
on the environment and natural resources. The
Group has been accredited with ISO 9001:2015
certification for its quality management system,
and continuously improves its management of
the environment. Various exhausts, wastewater,
solid wastes and noises from the production sites
have been strictly controlled by government laws
and regulations.

In addition, the Group's factory has set up a
safety and environmental incident emergency
rescue team for safety and environmental incident
issue, and has conducted different emergency
drills. It has also established contingency plans
with corresponding emergency preparations and
responses dealing with emergency to cope with
various urgent environmental safety incidents.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Environment (Continued)

3.1.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

(Continued)
Green Manufacturing Policy (Continued)

Concurrently, the Group is also equipped with
specialized facilities for wastewater treatment.
And it has also established clear pollutant
treatments and operating instructions which
monitor the facilities on real-time basis and
record the results in detail.

The Group would carry out regular inspections
on the key pollution control facilities to ensure
its normal operation. According to the provisions
of the Law of Environmental Protection of
the People’'s Republic of China, the Group
makes environmental impact assessment on
construction projects in the Group's factory and
strictly complies with government emission
regulations. All pollutants after processing have
been discharged in standards.

3.1.4 Climate Change

The Group is aware that there are significant
and well known risks associated with climate
change and global warning and understands
that stakeholders expect us to be managing and
mitigating climate change risks in line with local
and global commitments and recommendations.
While we operate in industries that are not
directly affected by the physical effects of climate
change, we recognise that the impacts of climate
change are varied and long-ranging as we move
to a low carbon economy and changes in society,
customers and markets and regulatory responses
could prevent us from meeting our strategic
objectives and could result in adverse operational,
compliance and financial impacts.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3.
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

BE -HEREERR @)

3.1 Environment (Continued) 31 BEE)

3.1.4 Climate Change (Continued) 3.1.4 WIRE L (&)

In order to reduce carbon emissions in business
operations and jointly cope with climate change,

RTREBZERRDBEBERRKR
EHREEL  KRERBMEEAF

the Group actively advocates the green policy BERNSOEER B OhERHEE
of sustainable development and strives to save NEEBER ~ K - RN EMER -

energy, water, paper and other resources within
its capacity. We proactively raised our staff’'s
environmental awareness and implemented
relevant measures in energy saving and reducing
emission in daily operation so as to establish a
low-carbon office.

Thus, climate change risks are considered by
the Board to be an emerging material risk and
oversight is given to the senior management
who is developing an overarching climate change
strategy to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

HMBERESEINRREES TR
HESET BRI BREEE
AR N E o

Rt - EFZgBREELCRRAS A
MEEAREE YTEESREREYH
2EMNREZERBOGIE - D
BERBHR WEEERERETE

R\ B 1) B R % 2 7 DA 175 B i R 2 1R Bk

and assist with the movement to a lower carbon KA o
economy with policies and procedures to manage
such potential risks.
3.2 Society 32 #E
3.2.1 Employment 321 EE

Apart from complying with the local employment
regulations, the Group has formulated relevant
employment policies to ensure employees are
treated in a fair and reasonable manner.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group ensures that the recruitment process
is in compliance with the legislation and free from
discrimination. All candidates have been treated
equally. During recruitment, it has been stipulated
to prohibit discrimination against factors such
as race, ethnicity, social class, nation, religion,
disability, gender, sexual orientation, marital
status, age, membership in trade union or political

party.
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.1 Employment (Continued)

Recruitment and Promotion (Continued)

Employees would be promoted in accordance
with the Group’s rules and regulations, through
fair and impartial performance appraisal, to
ensure equal opportunities for promotion.

Compensation and Welfare

The Group pays compensation and welfare to
employees in strict compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, including the statutory
minimum wages, legal calculation for overtime
compensation, social insurance paid for
employees, statutory holidays, paid annual leave
and paid maternal leave.

In addition, whenever compensation to the
employee at work is required, the Group would
implement in strict compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

Employee Benefits

Employees would be entitled to insurance,
medical benefits, share options as well as
discretionary bonus. The Group offers holiday
benefits to employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
make any legal violation or discrimination.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

-

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HgRERERE

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.1 Employment (Continued)

As of 31 December 2023, the total number and

3.

BRE HEREARRR @)

32 #HE#E)

321 EF(E)

RZTEZ=F+=ZA=+—H &E

distribution of employees were summarized as EE N BRI
below:
Figure V Bx
Number of Employees
EEHA

2023 2022
Gender 14 5l —E-=fF —F--
Male B 135 64
Female 4 46 20
Employment Type EEER
Full Time £ 181 84
Part Time R - -
Age group FEp4a Rl
18-24 18% 2455 7 1
25-34 2523475 24 11
35-44 3554455, 47 28
45-54 455 BARE, 62 29
55-64 5526475 39 13
>65 >655% 2 2
Total it 181 84

ABREBEIERBRAR o ZTE=FFHK

53



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HgREBHE

3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE -HERERRRE D)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)
3.2 Society (Continued) 32 #HE#E)
3.2.1 Employment (Continued) 321 B (&)
Figure VI B~

Average Monthly Employee
Turnover Rate (%)

A5 EB R KR (%)
Average
T44E
2023 2022

Gender 4 7l —E-=F S
Male B 5.19 40.89
Female pegs 0 33.33

Average

FH5E

2023 2022
Age group FHRAER —E=-= —E_—
18-24 18E2475% 0 50
25-34 25% 3473, 125 75.76
35-44 35F445% 4.26 34.23
45-54 45E545%, 0 36.78
55-64 55%26475% 5.13 28.21
>65 >655% 0 4.17
Overall Average BETHE 3.87 39.09
3.2.2 Health and Safety 322 BFEHZTE

The Group has implemented an occupational EEERRERELETIEER F
health and safety management system which ATRBEEREREERE TSR
takes different measures to minimize the o
occurrence of occupational illness and industrial
injury.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3.
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

BE -HEREERR @)

3.2 Society (Continued) 32 #E#E)

3.2.2 Health and Safety (Continued) 322 BEHZ2 (&)

Occupational Health and Safety Policy

The Group has formulated a set of safety
production management, including first-aid and
self-help knowledge after the occurrence of an
accident. In the Group's factory, it has set up a
safety team and provided three levels of safety
training on regular basis namely Factory Level,
Departmental Level and Group Level which
are led by the departmental heads and safety
officers.

Volunteer fire brigades have been set up in the
Group’s factory for safety purpose. Apart from
this, the Group also installs CCTV in various
locations such as warehouse, materials storage
to reduce the risk from any accident.

Workplace Safety Management

The Group has assessed safety risks in the
workplaces and has formulated corresponding
operating rules to manage the health and safety
hazards posed to employees as follows:

1. Operating procedures are set up for all
level positions, for example, regulations
of operations management for safe work
in confined space and the procedures for
operating machinery to protect the safety
of employees;

2. Safety officers would regularly inspect fire
protection facilities and safety facilities to
ensure they can function properly;

3. Protective equipment is provided to
employees such as masks, earplugs, plastic
gloves and anti-smashing shoes;

4. Emergency exits are kept clear to prevent
obstruction.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.2 Health and Safety (Continued)

Employee Safety Training

The Group provides suitable training to ensure
effective implementation of operating rules and
safe operation of equipment. Moreover, all new
employees must take training in knowledge
of safety. The Group also arranges fire and
emergency drills in the Group's factory on a
regular basis to ensure employees are familiar
with procedures when dealing with accidents.

Work-life Balance Management

The Group emphasizes on employee work-life
balance and has regularly organized different
activities for employees after work. There are
recreational facilities in the Group's factory like
sports ground, basketball court, billiard room,
table tennis room and karaoke room.

No working hours (2023: 0 working hours)
were lost due to work injuries during the
reporting period and no work-related fatality was
identified in the past three years including this
reporting year. We have strictly abided by the
related safety regulations and there were no
cases of prosecution due to violation of related
occupational safety regulations during the
reporting period.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BRE HEREBRR@®
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued) 32 #HEg#E)

3.2.3 Development and Training 323 RREREZI

Career Development Policy

The Group has established comprehensive
training system that covers factory’s rules and
regulations, product workmanship, environmental
protection and the relevant safety training.
In addition, the Group emphasizes practical
experiences and thus arranges team leaders,
group leaders or experienced employees to guide
new recruits in their work.

During the reporting period, the total number
of employees attended training and the total
number of training hours provided to employees
were summarized as follows:
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Figure VII Bt
Total number of trained employees
SN ESEH

2023 2022
Gender 4 Bl —EZ=F T
Male B 130 27
Female 7 41 14
Employee Category EEDE
Senior Management BREE 1 2
Middle Management & 1R 4 4
Supervisor FE 16 4
General Staff —fRET 150 31
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.3 Development and Training (Continued)

3. BE HEREAXRA@

32 #g#@)

323 BEREZI(E)

Career Development Policy (Continued) B R ()
Figure VIII BN
Total number of training hours
completed by employees (Hours)
EETRIEINMNARE ()
2023 2022
Gender 14 5l —E-=F —F--
Male S 775 167
Female e 245 68
Employee Category EESE
Senior Management SRERE 6 26
Middle Management i E IR 24 30
Supervisor ES 95 73
General Staff —RET 895 106

During the reporting period, the total number
of employees attended training was 171 and
the total number of training hours provided to
employees was 1,020. The average training hours
for each employee were around 5.96 hours.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE HEREARARE@
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)
3.2 Society (Continued) 32 #HE#E)
3.2.4 Labour Standards 324 #TER

The Group strictly prohibits the employment of
child labour and only employs individuals aged
18 or above. The Group also ensures no forced
labour occurs.

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in
the workplace. Stringent hiring procedures and
processes are enforced to verify the legal proof
of age before commencement of work. We also
regularly review the employees’ information to
ensure no employment of child labour and forced
labour. The Group has strictly complied with the
Labour Contract Law of PRC, the Hong Kong
employment laws and other relevant laws and
regulations to avoid child or forced labour and
other potential irregularities. We do not adopt any
kind of forced labour including prison labour as
supplier.

If the responsible personnel identify the existence
of child labour or forced labour within the Group,
the work of such child labour or forced labour will
be terminated immediately.

During the reporting period, there was no
reported case of child labour or forced labour.
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3.2.5 Supply Chain Management 325 REHEEE
Supplier’s Code of Conduct BRER T4 TFA

The Group has developed various codes of
conduct which are communicated to suppliers
of the Group, to assure product quality.
Prohibition on waste paper being mixed with
hazardous wastes would minimize the impact on
environment.

EEEEERARAE o

SEmHERSIETTENTT AT
BRERER ZILHEBERERLR
BEMS RO HRENTE -

TR -FFW

59



60

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HgREBHE

3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.5 Supply Chain Management (Continued)

In addition, the Group has established a set of
code of practices in selecting suppliers. After
evaluation of factors such as product quality,
price, environmental protection and social
responsibility performance, the suppliers with the
highest performance-to-price ratio and the best
overall performance would be selected. Besides,
the Group has also established evaluation system
for evaluation beyond commercial interest. The
system evaluates qualification of new suppliers
and performance of existing key suppliers on
regular basis. Evaluations are carried out in the
form of on-site audits and/or document reviews
on qualification and compliance.

Green procurement has been our procurement
approach. In the process of sourcing materials,
we require that components used by the
suppliers be in full compliance with environmental
protection requirements, in accordance with
national and industry standards. The Group also
arranges meetings with the suppliers on a regular
basis to ensure the provision of quality products
and services to customers and to monitor the
supplier's performance in business ethics,
environmental protection, human rights and
labour practices.

As of 31 December 2023, the geographical
distribution of the Group’s suppliers was as

follows:

Figure IX
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Number of Suppliers

HrEmE A

2023 2022
Geographical location IV E —E-= —E- =
PRC H 33 55
Others HAity 1 3
Total At 34 58
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.6 Product Responsibility

Quality Assurance Policy

The Group has stringent criteria in monitoring
production process. The quality of semi-finished
products and finished products are examined.
Moreover, the Group ensures workers to operate
carefully during the production process to avoid
defective products being delivered to the market.

Product Safety Policy

For assuring product safety, the finished products
must pass the final inspection and testing before
releasing to the market.

Fair Marketing Policy

The Group's salespersons are required to
disseminate information on the recognized
competitive advantage only when promoting the
products. Negative description of competitors is
not allowed so as to avoid misleading customers.

After-sales Service Policy

Customer service officers and salespersons
would make after-sales visits to customers on a
regular basis. The Group would obtain comments
for improvement according to results of
customer’s satisfaction survey and would follow
up after-sales issues immediately. If there are
severe product quality issues, the Group would
recall the defective products from the market.

During the reporting year, the Group received 4
(2022: 0) complaints in relation to product quality.

We strictly monitor the entire lifecycle of our
products, from sourcing materials to product
recall, return and replacement, so as to ensure
the execution of technical standards, operational
safety, as well as product and service quality.
Each quality report and product recall request,
if any, from our customers will be investigated
and examined seriously by our designated quality
control team to determine appropriate follow-up
actions.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.6 Product Responsibility (Continued)

After-sales Service Policy (Continued)

During the reporting period, there was no product
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
and no products and service-related complaints
received.

Privacy Protection of Consumer's Information

Personal information of customers would properly
be maintained by the Group. Relevant information
has been stored at the internal specific
department. Moreover, customer information can
only be accessed by the authorized personnel.
No one is allowed to make own copies of or store
privately or get the customer information out of
the offices without permission.

The Group has strictly abided by relevant
regulations, and no violation of product
responsibility or privacy was found during the
reporting period.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group endeavours to protect intellectual
rights by different measures. We actively monitor
any infringement in terms of counterfeit goods
across the country with people’s court and public
bodies. In addition, we renew the registration of
any expiring trademarks and patents based on
the need of our business.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE -HEREARRRE D)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)
3.2 Society (Continued) 32 #g#@)
3.2.7 Anti-corruption 327 KRB
Corporate Governance PEER

The Board of Directors has set up different
committees, such as audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration
committee, striving to maintain high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard shareholders
rights and interests, as well as the Group's value
and accountability.

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group has supervised the behavior of
operating personnel in order to safeguard
employees’ legal rights and corporate interests.
In addition, the Group welcomes employees
to report any non-compliance and dishonest
behavior. The privacy of relevant employees who
report the issues would be protected.

Financial Auditing

The Group engages ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited as the independent third-party auditor to
audit the Group's financial accounts. This ensures
that the Group's accounts are clear and accurate,
and the interests of shareholders are protected.

Declaration on Conflict of Interest

The Group stipulates that all employees must
declare the conflict of interests. Directors and
senior management are prohibited to transact any
securities of the Group during sensitive periods.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (Continued)

3.2 Society (Continued)

3.2.7 Anti-corruption (Continued)

Prevention of Corruption, Extortion and Fraud

The Group has established comprehensive
system for internal control and formulated a set
of strict policies, which prevent malpractices and
unethical business practices, and also avoid the
occurrence of corruption and other fraudulent
behaviours.

The Group has strictly complied with the
regulations on anti-corruption. No violations of
any provisions were found in the reporting period.

During the reporting period, the Group recorded
zero concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its staff,
and was in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering that have a significant
impact on the Group.

The Group will provide training to our directors
and employees on anti-corruption practices in the
ensuing financial year.

3.2.8 Community Investment

As a responsible company, the Group deeply
understands and actively fulfills its social
responsibilities and is committed to promoting
and participating in the sustainable development
of the community.

The Group has actively participated in the
community including donating funds and
materials to charitable organizations to giving
back to the society.

The Group encourages and supports our staff
and workers to participate in voluntary social
welfare works. In financial year 2023, the Group
sponsored approximately HKD22,000 to the
Tangli Elderly Club (EF&EE) for caring of
elderly and donated to the Yan Chai Hospital.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A business review of the Group with description of the principal
risks and uncertainties and the likely future development are set
out in chairman’s statement, management discussion and analysis
on pages 4 to 15, this directors’ report on pages 65 to 77, and in
notes 5, 6, 34 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 84.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the years from 2019 to 2023 is set out on page 180.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of the movement in the share premium and reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 86.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$414,330,000 (2022:
HK$521,179,000), being the aggregation of share premium and
retained profits.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Chairman
Mr. Hui Sum Tai, Chief Executive Officer

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
Mr. Wong Chu Leung
Mr. Chau Suk Ming

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Hui Sum Tai and Mr. Wong Chu Leung shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Mr. Tso Sze Wai has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term commencing from 20 October 2023 to 31
March 2025, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party. Further, each
of the Directors (except for Mr. Tso Sze Wai) has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term commencing from
1 April 2023 to 31 March 2025, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from the Independent Non-executive
Directors, annual confirmations of their independence pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The Company considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in Management Profile on pages 16 to 18.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “2013 Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 for the primary purpose of
providing incentive or rewards to selected participants for their
contribution to the Group.

The 2013 Scheme has expired on 2 June 2023. Thereafter, no
further options will be granted under the 2013 Scheme but the
subsisting options granted thereunder prior to the expiry date will
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms
of the 2013 Scheme.

Particulars of the 2013 Scheme of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:
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TERREADDRRBRENZ B -

Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited ~Outstanding

price per  at beginning during during during at end of
Category Option type Date of grant share of the year the year the year the year the year
Eh BREES BEBH SRORE FAHRTE FREL ERfR FRRE FRERTE

(Note) HK$
(5E) B
Directors
Ex
Mr. Hui Sum Ping G 15.10.2018 0.435 3,984,000 - - - 3,984,000
FRTRE
Mr. Hui Sum Tai G 15.10.2018 0.435 3,984,000 - - - 3,984,000
ARELE
Mr. Wong Chu Leung G 15.10.2018 0.435 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
BRREE
8,968,000 - - - 8,968,000
Other employees G 15.10.2018 0.435 3,784,000 - - (250,000) 3,534,000
HitER
Total for all categories 12,752,000 - - (250,000) 12,502,000
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Note:

The vesting period of the share options granted is determined by Directors
at each time when the options are granted. Holders of share options

fBIREE ()

i

RHBERE, FEAREFREARLBREREE - —
—=% Jri‘lTﬁ%ﬂﬂfé%HAETE’\MTHEHMT@HEZ#Z%H&‘

granted under the 2013 Scheme may only exercise their options during the 1

exercisable periods as follows:

Granted under the 2013 Scheme
BE-ZS-—=F3EEH

Option type G Maximum % of share options exercisable

GEBRE AITEBREZESEIL

1. 52019 30.4.2020 up to 50%
—NEEA-—RAZE_Z-_ZEFWNA=+H = Al E50%

1.5.2020-30.4.2021
—ECEFERA-HAE_FT-_—FWA=1H

1.5.2021-30.4.2026

up to 75% (to the extent not already exercised)

B AETS% (AHKITEEAR)

up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

CE - FRA-BEE-_AFNA=1H

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of new shares which
might be issued upon exercise of the options that had been granted
and remained outstanding under the 2013 Scheme was 12,502,000
new shares, representing approximately 1.53% of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 June
2023, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “2023 Scheme") under which the
Directors may grant options to eligible participants to subscribe
for the Company’s shares subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the
2023 Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption.

The details of the principal terms and conditions of the 2023
Scheme were summarised in the circular of the Company dated 19

May 2023.

No option was granted under the 2023 Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of =
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of  Hits
the Company and its associated corporations within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO"), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

(a) Shares

T-_=f+-A=+—8"
SEBI ([BHREEER]) E3521E 2 MEBEFZEF
paﬂﬁﬁﬁpﬂﬁ’* FIRE FTEITAESHETEEFIHNIZ
EFAEHE
BEE (TR RFH ﬁ&ﬁﬂiﬂwﬂJ%XV*ﬁ)Zfoﬁ izl
B RESHPEE 2 ER R

(a) B#H
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EEEHRE

EERKRD HERORES 2ERS

BRARAIRBES K

RRBIRERAE  EENAREREMA

KRBT ¢

Approximate

Company/ percentage
Name of associated Number and class of of issued
Name of Director corporation Capacity securities share capital
HEBTRAE
B ADR/HEEEERE 5% EEYERER BABED
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Beneficial owner 131,896,681 shares 16.13%
Long position
HFHRFILE ANE] EREAA 131,896,681 % A% 13
)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Founder of a discretionary 107,755,400 shares 13.17%
trust/interest of Long position (Note 1)
controlled corporations
ARTEEE ARQT 2RIEFRIZIAS 107,755,4008% 317
XEEEER A (fEET)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Interest of spouse 27,256,000 shares 3.33%
Long position
FMFRE Fi /N Bz s 27,256,0008% (% 17 4 &
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Beneficial owner 150,556,430 shares 18.41%
Long position
TARTELAE /NS EREAA 150,556,430 i 17 4F &
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Interest of spouse 5,110,000 shares 0.62%
Long position
TARTELAE ZN/NS] Bz s 5,110,000/ % 17 &F 72
SEEEERER —TZFFR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(a) Shares (Continued)

(a) MD(#&)

EERKRM HERORES 2 EE® (@)

Approximate

Company/ percentage
Name of associated Number and class of of issued
Name of Director corporation Capacity securities share capital
HEBITRA
Y ERR B EEEE &% ESHERER BMABF D
Mr. Chau Suk Ming Company Beneficial owner 180,000 shares 0.02%
Long position
JE /B 5 A /NG| EREAA 180,000 % 17 17 &
Mr. Chau Suk Ming Company Interest of spouse 1,553,007 shares 0.18%
Long position
&R 5 4 AN [ 1,653,007 % Bt 7 4 &
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Gong Ming Hop Fung Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
Paper Ware Factory trust/interest of controlled  deferred shares of
Limited (“Hop Fung GM™)  corporations/short position ~ HK$1 each Long and
of controlled corporations short positions (Note 2)
AT A LNAEERRBERD 2RETEAS 3,000,000/ F A% EI(E 17 T
(I&82m)) RrEEs/ ZERZEETERTA
REEERE Ko# e (Miek2)
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung GM Short position of a 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
controlled corporation deferred shares of
HK$1 each Long and
short positions (Note 2)
FRFELE AYRH REEEAR 3,000,000/ F A% EI{E 18 T
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Shares (Continued)

Notes:

The 107,755,400 shares are owned by Goldspeed Holdings
Limited (“Goldspeed”). Goldspeed is wholly owned by
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited (“Goldkeen”) and
Goldkeen is wholly owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited ("HSBC") in its capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004
Family Trust, a discretionary trust the founder of which is
Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the discretionary objects of which
include Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the family members of Mr. Hui
Sum Ping. Accordingly, Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be
interested in the 107,755,400 shares under the SFO.

Hop Fung GM is a subsidiary of the Company and therefore
an associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. The
entire issued share capital of Hop Fung GM is HK$3,000,100
divided into 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM are
beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group (HK) Limited (“Hop
Fung Group HK") which is owned as to 50% and 50% by
Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Mr. Hui Sum
Tai is deemed to be interested in the 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19 August 2003, Hop
Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop Fung Group
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an option to purchase from them such 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM. Accordingly,
each of Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Mr. Hui Sum Tai is deemed to
have a short position in the underlying shares of the option
granted under the option deed pursuant to the SFO.

Share options

Details of the Directors’ and their associates’ interests in share
options of the Company are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” in this report.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2023.
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(a) W&
BFE

1. 7%107,755,400% 1% 5 A Goldspeed Holdings
Limited ( [Goldspeed] ) ## - Goldspeed
fiGoldkeen Assets Management Limited
( [Goldkeen| ) & #H - ifiGoldkeenEIHSBC
International Trustee Limited ( [HSBC/ ) KA
HSP 2004 Family TrustX st A2 S D 2EHE © %
BErR—HEEER  HAVARHRTLALE 2
EETHRBIETRTLERTRTIEEZREK
8 o FHlt - RIBEFHRBERD - 5T TR EBR
AWEAE2107,755,40008 & 19 2 #eas o

2. AERNADNARBZHERT - ABREESK
Bl BARRZHEEE®R - 8L RBPZE2IE
EITRR AN /&3,000,1008 7T * 9 A 100 R EE
178702 @M% % 3,000,000/% FRX EE 178 T 2 &
REREELRY - 7%3,000,0000 8 FREEIETLZE
YWARERTERELERASLYER (B8) ARA
A ([E2EEEE] ) Exlr  MEEEETR
BAAAR T LERTREEEDRIHEES0% &
50% °

BIEEERIEED  FHRFEERTRRLES
B AR B A A Y RARA3,000,000 0% E E 174 7T %
ZRRRIERR 2 A o

RIEEBSHA-—SE=F N \A+NAZBERERE
ELEEEFERERBEAARRAIZZENE AR
Hop Fung Group Company Limited#% B -
LAM % 505 53,000,000/ SRREETE T2 & LR
PSRRI - At - RIEFSH RS -
FRFAERFRFRESARR AR RERER
PSR IR L BB ARE S R 2 FRBARR (D 2 KB ©

(b) MEER#E
BENBREIBMBEALRARRBIRE 2 EEFITHRA

WE [BRRE] —#6 -

BEXWEEN R-ZE_=F+_A=1+—HB &F
REEFE2BEATHRERARQR SEAFBEEBZ
EARD - HERNDRESTRERA T AEEIAE -

BEEBEERBRAR o« —T_—FFH
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the following shareholders had interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

FERRRKRMD  HERORES 2 #R

RIZE-=F+_A=+—H0 BREBELARFARBEFR
P15E3361GIF E 2 BERMAREXATHEAR
Al TR AR BB SR RE A ) 7 B B R sk

HIE 1

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the & :
Company:
Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
issued share issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held options held Note(s) share capital
HECRT Fits HERTRA
REERE,/HE 514 ROHE BREHE Wi 2 BREDL
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Beneficial owner/founder of a discretionary 266,908,081 3,984,000 1,2 33.13%
trust/interest of controlled corporations/
interest of spouse
FRTRE EaBB AN/ 2HETECA/
RErERE/BRER
Goldspeed Beneficial owner 107,755,400 - 2 13.17%
ERBBA
Goldkeen Interest of a controlled corporation 107,755,400 - 2 13.17%
XEEEER
HSBC Trustee of discretionary trust 107,755,400 - 2 13.17%
PRETXTA
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Beneficial owner/interest of spouse 155,666,430 3,984,000 3 19.52%
TRREE ERABAN/ BB ER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Beneficial owner/interest of spouse 171,227,882 - 4 20.94%
TRERE ERAAAN/ BB ER
Notes: B 3E

1. Of 266,908,081 total shares and 3,984,000 total options, Ms. Jian
Jian Yi is directly interested in 27,256,000 shares and is deemed to
be interested in 239,652,081 shares and 3,984,000 options of the
Company under the SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Ping, a

Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. The entire issued share capital of Goldspeed is indirectly held by
HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Goldkeen in its
capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary
trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the discretionary
objects of which include Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Goldspeed, Goldkeen,
HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be interested in the
107,755,400 shares under the SFO.

3. Of 155,666,430 total shares and 3,984,000 total options, Ms. Leung
Pui Man is directly interested in 5,110,000 shares and is deemed to
be interested in 150,556,430 shares and 3,984,000 options of the
Company under the SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Tai, a
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

4. Of 171,227,882 shares, Ms. Wong Mui is directly interested in
750,000 shares and is deemed to be interested in 170,477,882 shares
of the Company under the SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. In addition, save as disclosed above,
none of the Directors, and any of their respective associates were
granted any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company or
had exercised any such right during the year.
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2. Goldspeedz 2 5 2 1T IR N HHSBCE B H100% X &
7% E GoldkeenLAHSP 2004 Family TrustZ 3EA & 15
A o HSP 2004 Family Trust/h—IE & #E{E:E » HAl
YABHRFEE  MEEETEHRBEIRTLEER
TREREZRIEKE - At - REBEFHRBEE
Goldspeed * Goldkeen * HSBCR FFFFF L £ X B8 A
5 3%107,755,4000% f% 15 2 #E %5 o

3. 74155,666,430[% i% 17 48 25 123,984,00017 & R i 42 g -
A EL+EERHE A RQAS110,00008 %MD - AR
HRBABRARACEERTERRIRTAEZRE
RIEFHRPEKY  RPMELTHEEAEEEA AR
150,556,4300% A% {7 23,984,00017 & A 4 7 #E %5 o

4. MW171,227,882 R+ - B Z T EEIFEARF
750,000/ Bk #Ex AR R EAARNAG 2 EFER/RE
HRBEAEZERE  REFLFRPEKD SR
R AR AR RA)170,477,8820 B (D 2 #EES ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company is
or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates were
interested in any business apart from the Group’s business, that
competes or competed or are or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Company's business was entered into or existed during
2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 164(1) of the Company's Articles of Association,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred by him or
her in the execution and discharge of his or her duties.

The Company maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance during 2023 and up to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for around 9.5% of the Group's revenue. The aggregate
amount of purchases attributable to the Group’'s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 74.2% of the Group's total
purchases, with the largest supplier accounted for approximately
30.4%.

None of the Directors, their close associates and shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company's issued shares) have any interests in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not enter into any related party
transactions or continuing related party transactions which fall
under the definition of “Connected Transaction” or "“Continuing
Connected Transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
shall oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
approximately HK$24,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors strive to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasise the importance of a quality Board, effective
internal controls and accountability to shareholders. Details of the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 39 of this
annual report. The Company has met the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, except with the
following deviations:

Code Provision C.2.1

° Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

o There are no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Directors consider that the responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer respectively are clear
and distinctive and hence written terms thereof are not
necessary.

Code Provision D.3.3

o Code provision D.3.3 stipulates that the audit committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditor.

o Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to review
the financial information in its interim report, the Audit
Committee has met with the Company’s auditor once a year
to discuss matters arising from the audit of the Company's
annual results and other matters the auditor may wish to
raise. The Audit Committee has met with the Company’s
auditor once during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Code Provision E.1.2

. A deviation from the code provision E.1.2 is that the
Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews
and makes recommendations to the Directors on the
remuneration packages of the Directors only but not the
senior management.

. Currently, the remuneration of the senior management is

attended by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving continuous improvement
in environmental performance and complying with the relevant
environmental protection regulations and rules. In 2021, 100%
wastepaper (old containerboard cardboard) is used by the Group for
producing containerboard in the upstream business. The factory of
the upstream business has been suspended since October 2021.

Environmental protection measures are implemented by the Group
to minimize the impact on the environment.

The environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report of the
Group disclosing detailed discussion on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance are prepared in accordance with Appendix
C2 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued
by the Stock Exchange. The ESG report is disclosed in this Annual
Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditor of
the Company and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“Zhonghui”)
was appointed as the auditor of the Company on 28 November
2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte.
Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in auditor in
the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2023 have been audited by
Zhonghui.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Zhonghui as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sum Ping
Chairman
28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B

MM o

ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hop
Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 179,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Provision for tax payment amounts

Due to the uncertainties in relation to the contingent liabilities as
disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, we
have been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for us
to assess whether no provision of relevant tax amounts has been
provided concerning the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice (as
defined in note 30) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are fairly
stated and the profit or loss effect on the provision of relevant
tax amounts for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are
properly reflected. In addition, we have been unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to justify whether the other
tax expenses of approximately HK$23,628,000 recognised in the
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 in relation to
the Decisions should be made in the last year or in the prior years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

Provision for tax payment amounts (Continued)

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have
a consequential effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 and the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, and the related
disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which mentions that the Group incurred consecutive
losses attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$100,804,000 and HK$192,725,000 for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, respectively, and as at 31 December
2023 the Group had net current liabilities of HK$24,137,000. In
addition, as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has significant amounts of contingent
liabilities in relation to the tax payments demanded by the tax
bureau in the PRC. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B E R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section and the Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment relating to the containerboard segment

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment relating to the containerboard segment as a key
audit matter due to its financial significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the involvement of significant judgements
and assumptions in estimating the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which property, plant and equipment belong
to.

As disclosed in notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the temporary suspension of production relating
to the containerboard segment, the management considered that
there are impairment indicators of the related property, plant and
equipment existed as at 31 December 2023. Accordingly, the
management assessed the impairment of the property, plant and
equipment relating to the containerboard segment at 31 December
2023 by determining the recoverable amount based on their fair
value less costs of disposal which involves certain key assumptions
and estimates. These key assumptions and estimates involved the
application of subjective management judgement and estimates.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment relating
to the containerboard segment for which the management has
performed the impairment assessment as at 31 December 2023
are approximately HK$689,146,000.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment relating to the containerboard segment
(Continued)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment on
property, plant and equipment relating to the containerboard
segment included:

- Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process,
obtaining the valuation report from management, and
evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
external valuer;

- meeting with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market evidence
to support significant judgments and assumptions applied in
the valuation model;

- Checking the mathematical accuracy of the valuation model;

- Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
model to supporting evidence; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment assessment on property,
plant and equipment relating to the containerboard segment is
supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

R GTE e

REFXEE @)

BRERE D BERENYE - BERREZBETE
C%é‘?)

EERERESHBNDE - BEER
RFEeE:

REETEH HRERT (A

- BRGEERRE REEBERMGERS MG
SNEBEER B - BEN R BB

- HEONEE A ERNEE - A wmILE ARG ERR
B~ 73R RO e 5l E AR 2L rh P AR B K ) B K
BRZTHEE

- BRREERE 2 B EREN

- HIRBEERGEEERZ T ERREBARE
P53

- HAEFAMBERRANEERAFEAEZRE -

EEERERREDBEBOYE - BER
Zﬂﬁaﬂéﬁ%—ﬂ?@ BEXH -

FHRPWHMLER

EERHEHMEN HMEHNEE BEQRFHRAHKE
# T BREGE M RE MBS 2 R BEHR
& o HtbERIARBN A A ]S B PREEERYE

FEVBBREANBERL NRERMER  TEK
T\ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬂéﬂ?‘i&ﬁﬁﬁtE’J%ﬁ%uﬁ €

EEEEREAYBHRRE  BEENETRMNE L
ERAESFRHEZSEMER  RIBES - ZEHEM
ERROREGAMBHRRABEIREXERTHAEM
BER A EREE - I%ﬁiﬁﬁa%&ﬁ% L o

81



82

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B E R S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEaRkEtEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE—E——F+—HA=F+—HIFFE

2023 2022
—EB-=fF —EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET T
Revenue W g 6 224,357 424,411
Cost of sales 88 & B A (210,429) (417,014)
Gross profit EF 13,928 7,397
Other income HA A 7 6,713 10,903
Other gains and losses H bl R EE 8 4,541 (4,289)
Net (impairment loss recognised)/reversal of ~FEE(EZEEIEER T 2 (B
impairment loss recognised under expected — RREEE) 2 MR RIEE
credit loss model BRE - R (174) 151
Selling and distribution costs HE R D HKA (12,451) (18,752)
Administrative expenses TBAX (47,042) (90,471)
Other expenses HibFx 9 (62,421) (89,988)
Finance costs B IDIN 10 (3,555) (6,188)
Loss before tax BRAEE (100,461) (191,237)
Income tax expenses i 11 (343) (1,488)
Loss for the year, attributable to owners XA FEFABIEFEEFE
of the Company 12 (100,804) (192,725)
Other comprehensive expense for the year:  FEEMEEFE X ¢
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEAGEEF IS
to profit or loss: BmHE -
- Exchange differences arising from —MEBINEE 2
translation of foreign operations PEH =58 (18,218) (94,936)
Other comprehensive expenses FAEMEEHAYZ
for the year (18,218) (94,936)
Total comprehensive expense for the year, A2 FEEAEGEEE2MEB
attributable to owners of the Company HEE (119,022) (287,661)
LOSS PER SHARE sSRER 15
Basic (HK$ cents) — EAR B (12.33) (23.57)
Diluted (HK$ cents) — #5g (B1L) (12.33) (23.57)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
RoFE-—=F1+—HA=1—H

2023 2022
—ZE_-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E =& 16 733,275 798,330
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 19,223 19,521
Deposits and prepayments e RIBIR 20 143,319 162,979
895,817 980,830
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 22,068 31,292
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b FE W GRIR 19 47,598 60,334
Deposits and prepayments Ee KRB 20 7,665 7,857
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKIAS 21 47,272 110,796
124,603 210,279
CURRENT LIABILITIES ABEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H b e 5/IE 22 92,451 119,885
Due to a director JEHEEHIE 23 1,365 =
Taxation payable FERTFETR 1,354 2,111
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 611 304
Bank borrowings RITEE 25 52,959 2,230
148,740 124,530
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS RE(AE) BEEZRE (24,137) 85,749
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BWEERRBARS
LIABILITIES 871,680 1,066,579
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE 24 323 =
Bank borrowings RITIEE 25 19,872 95,875
Deferred taxation iR IE T IH 27 8,593 8,790
28,788 104,665
NET ASSETS EEFE 842,892 961,914
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE
Share capital [ 26 81,764 81,764
Reserves & 761,128 880,150
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO AARFEBABGERERE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 842,892 961,914

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

REBABITIAEZ W EMBRERCNR T _NFE=A
“HN\BRERSHARKERR YA TIEERER

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: w2 .
33 .

HUI SUM PING H&H#¥F
DIRECTOR EE

HUISUMTAI %#%#%
DIRECTOR o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n\f\é%é%@%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE—E——F+—HA=F+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATEE AEG
PRC Share
Share Share Special  statutory Translation option  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
H BRE
kA REE BHREE  iERE EXRE i REIRE H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT T THT TR THL THT THR
(Note i) (Note (i)
(RsEm)  CR&EG)
At 1 January 2022 WZE-—%-F-H 81,764 492,392 (107,444) 850 104,100 3,663 674,250 1,249,575
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - (192,725)  (192,725)
Other comprehensive expense £ 2 ERIX
for the year - - = = (94,936) = = (94,936)
Total comprehensive expense  FE 2 %A%
for the year - - - - (94,936) - (192,725  (287,661)
Transfer upon forfeiture of ~ RINEBIREBER
share options - - - - - (1,100) 1,100 -
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZf
+ZB=1+-H 81,764 492,392 (107,444) 850 9,164 2,563 482,625 961,914
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - (100,804 (100,804)
Other comprehensive expense &£t 2 EF X
for the year - - = = (18,218) = = (18,218)
Total comprehensive expense  F & 2 Hf % £%8
for the year = = = = (18.218) = (100,804) (119,022)
Transfer upon forfeiture of ~ RINEBIREBER
share options - - - - - (50) 50 -
At 31 December 2023 R=B==Z%
+ZA=1-H 81,764 492,392 (107,444) 850 (9,054) 2,513 381,871 842,892
Notes: B & -

(i)

HOP F

Special reserve represents the difference between the costs of
investments in subsidiaries of Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and the aggregate amount of the non-voting
deferred share capital of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the group
reorganisation in 2003.

According to the relevant laws in the People’'s Republic of China
("PRC"), subsidiaries which were established in the PRC are
required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit after taxation to a
non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the respective subsidiaries’ registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution of dividends to owners.
Such reserve fund can be used to offset the previous years’ losses, if
any, and is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEREMER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E - —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEED
Loss before tax Bl E1E (100,461) (191,237)
Adjustments for: AEE AT A2
Finance costs B HS R AR 3,555 6,188
Net impairment loss recognised/(reversal EHEEEBEXT 2 EBRAES
of impairment loss recognised) under B/ ( BEERREBEER)  FE
expected credit loss model 174 (151)
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - HENEEZREESE
equipment - 6,953
Impairment loss on the deposit paid for W% « BRFER#EENRE 2 RIE
the acquisition of property, plant and 18
machinery 15,684 -
Allowance for inventories FERE 263 3,678
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BEREZEITE
equipment 54,317 61,164
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EAEEERE 1,153 9,715
Interest income AMEHA (639) (2,143)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERREERE (W)
and equipment 514 (281)
Written off of accruals and other payables TS5 8 5T 2 AR R EL b FE < 5B (20,948) =
Operating cash flows before working capital & E& ¢ E S ERSRE
changes (46,388) (106,114)
Movements in working capital: LHEEE
Change in inventories FEEE) 8,418 84,447
Change in trade and other receivables B 5) N H th FE YR IE £ &) 11,660 45,321
Change in deposits and prepayments e RBNZES) 867 (23)
Change in trade and other payables B 5 R H AR RIAE E) (5,583) (23,176)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EE(FER) EEZES (31,026) 455
Income tax paid BT PTISHL (1,115) (81)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM & EE (f£f) ELEZREFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (32,141) 374
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant W9 « ME M RE R E M EE
and equipment and other assets [EANEEn (552) (1,990)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  WIBWE - BE L& E (8,178) (2,026)
Interest received 2 F B 639 2,143
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand HEW% - BE MR EFTSRIE
equipment 2,895 289
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEEAZREEHR
ACTIVITIES (5,196) (1,584)
AEEBEIERBRAA o ZT_=FFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERMER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE-F-=#1 A=t AUFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E - —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEES
Advances from a director BEERRK 1,381 -
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (65,747) (164,389)
Interest on bank borrowings paid BERRITEER S (3,546) (8,342)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEAEEE (591) (9,312)
Interest on lease liabilities paid ENEEEENE (45) (266)
New bank loans raised FTIRITE R 42,221 50,070
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METEFERAZESTE
ACTIVITIES (26,327) (132,239)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RekBRSEZERIDFR
EQUIVALENTS (63,664) (133,449)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHOzReREEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 110,796 246,677
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREH 8 140 (2,432)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND SXZzHEERBESZE - METEE
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK RESE
BALANCES AND CASH 47,272 110,796

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of the registered office of the Company is disclosed
under Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 37.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred consecutive losses attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$100,804,000
and HK$192,725,000 for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, respectively, and as at 31 December 2023
the Group had net current liabilities of HK$24,137,000. In
addition, as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has significant amounts of contingent
liabilities in relation to the tax payments demanded by the tax
bureau in the PRC. In the event that the potential obligation
becomes materialized, the Group may not have sufficient
cash and bank balances, which amounted to approximately
HK$47,272,000 as at 31 December 2023, to fulfil the
obligations. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2.

b — 55—

GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

For the purpose of assessing going concern, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) have prepared a cash flow
forecast of the Group covering a period of twelve months
from the end of the reporting period (the “Cash Flow
Forecast”) with plans and measures to mitigate the liquidity
pressure and to improve its financial position. In addition, the
Group obtained the letter of intent from one of the principal
bankers after the reporting period, under which loan facilities
up to a maximum amount of approximately RMB300,000,000
are available to the Group for not less than twelve months
from 31 December 2023. Based on the letter of intent and
Cash Flow Forecast assuming the plans and measures can
be successfully implemented as scheduled, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Group is able to continue as a
going concern and would have sufficient financial resources
to finance the Group's operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to adjust the value of the Group's assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised HKFRSs and new interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2023. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group's accounting policies, presentation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The material accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the
Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

4,

b — 55—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary's identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income), the amount
that was recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised on the same basis as would be required if the
previously held equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy (Il) below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time
if:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the product or service.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2023

4.

RENBBREHREERERNSFTEE
(&)

REEFEHIHBA

WATIRBEREFITLMANMITANKRERE
BEEBETENRTBIERRE =77 WK
TR - HREPAREARERIRBEBEHH
BR—FHNAH  DIBEERERINZEHR
BETHE -

AEEBEBEMIRENENEEREETSM
BITRAORERER W - T & OERFAER
RZAKNHER  BHETAUAE-—BRERANL
EXESHEMET WENRATER BOE
ERE—BRERARETT

s XEFARBEGSKHEEBEARAKEROMEHRD

3%

s AKBERENERIEXMBEFHEZEREX
MREEMEFNEE K

s AKRERENTERIENARAKEESEMLA
MEE  BAKBEHIES KA EONK
BEA AR BIATTRORER] o

WEROEEE —BRERAET K52 RE
MEFEER TR ERER - TR WERFP
S E m ARG IE I RO RS BEFERR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components (i.e. building management fee)
from lease component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and lease of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and buildings that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payment on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any measurement at lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. The remaining right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the leases.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be paid the Group under residual
value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in the market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of use assets,
are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers in the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4. #HRAMBHRXRFEREERERSHEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL (%)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE#E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEBEBA ()

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEERE (&)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted N BHEE  HEABRENEEERLHEER

by interest accretion and lease payments. TE/EH A -

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a WMEBRATER  AEBEgEHr2HE8E 0

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) HRRAFEREESERDEERARE)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in o HEHEmMEE g TEBEEEENT (M
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in A8 BHRBAT HBEHEEEEB
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by FREFTG B 2 EIEFT AR RARIR K
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised BEIHREFRBMEHTE -

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market 0 HERER#ETMSHSASEMSHES
rental rates following a market rent review, in which EE)mEIRES  THBERT HEHEE
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting BEEGEFERAYBEEE RAEEKETHEE
the revised lease payments using the initial discount RIEMEHGT= o
rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on REBNGEVBRAIRASHESEEZY ASE

the consolidated statement of financial position. BIEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
nonlease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR T/—/E YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE_F

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4,

F_—Ff—A=f—HIFE

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values
in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company's presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

o All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

4,

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting

period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents

contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of

termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

4,

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in these
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

4,

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction progress),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for supply of
services is carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

4,

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

b — 55—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually, when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset(or a cash-generating unit) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

4.

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

REMBBREHRHEERERNSFTHE
(%)

rE

TFE AR Jo Al B 3 5B 2 BRE JIRR - AR
SN ELETE - BmRERDHNKAEEE
RM#t BERSTIRAAELEEREERAIXNEE
MUK (MER) D BRER - IZRFEREE
B AT EBRMBEMERK AR FETHERT
PRAEERE e

€mTHE

AEBRR B TAA ORI DT EELRA M
BRAKRTHERBMBEERMBAE -

RUBMEERSRENSWENER AEEE
REERERNBARY BB EEER - LAKE
REEZTTREEERBFENBRID AR K
Bk - ETREEEMZHIER  ARESRILE
RYBEE RUEBBMBEER  BERE
BEEDEWREZAMNEES NS T HER

MEBBEERBAOANEERER - BHkK
MK ILHER - CRIEERBOV B ABRREESR
ENRENEREMNESPHER -

SEEEERBRAR o —T_=FFH

111



112

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at
fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit— impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit— impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 including trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits and bank balances. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experiences, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL
for all the financial assets, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

EE
4,

—E=Ff A= —HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’'s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
asset is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The ECL on respective
financial assets are assessed individually.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE T = H=1—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4,

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of a group entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and

bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

REMBBREHRHEERERNSFTHE
(%)

TWMIA )
MHBEE (&)

BOE R 5B E

Bl#Es - AEBHTEBURERMBEE

REBUETER IR R B HR At BN EER -
ZBREEREEEC KEEREKERRNERE

Téié\.ﬁ&?v °

HMBEEEREZTA
PEBYBRES#ER TR

MBEABREATADREMATLNAKTHEN
NBEARBRYBREEANPFHAERBAT
ENEETUI R BRATARTEAEEEE
FertgEs (RMBREMERE) WEAAH - B
EPBRELRRATARANEFBRR TXH
5] o

HamTHE

BT ANEFREETEENIRMEAERZE
EFYREFGRESZEMEGR - ARBMETZ
e TADRBEWREZ TS FUBREEEITRA
TR o

REBHEKATEZHHBERE

MHaBE(BRES REMENRERRITER)
HETDRAERMN K IR BIEK A E -

SEEEERBRAR o —T_=FFH

119



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

4.

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

AE_F_=F1_A=1—HAIUFE

REMBBREHRHEERERNSFTHE

(%)

BT (&)

(b) fHFFE T FIE R

2 B

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

—BAITNEEREKBIRELE

AEEENE

i

B

ZERBEASERER —KENKER
CINCIE=R = 3/Ni I N =PI )
%@ﬁﬁlﬁtﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

—HEBAS —EREMNBE TG
B (B — ‘E‘?%Z%ﬁk \/}TE’]$
’ilﬁﬁ'l'ﬁks\’\ MEEE A RHE &
B2E)

MEERH/R-F=TNE%0D
—HE

mzs—
=<

BARE=
BERBZ

ZERAAKE L RNEE AR
B i E 5 SR BB AIFT &

w

(a) P 28 Bl A 22 1l 2 X2 AL ]

(@PTEE R A L HE
HBLER (KZE
BIEEKE -

MaE T E
BHEBAR)EE

ZER(KAEE(MZERSETK
B)AEMKERR) AAREHAE
BERRREEIZEEABRY -

1IZERNRS

PIEHATRE N EZATHRZA LR ENRKER

=
B o

SEERERRE e

R FFR

121



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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4,

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’'s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the success of the plans and measures
to be undertaken by the Group to mitigate the liquidity
pressure and improve its financial position. Details
are explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

4,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

5.

fr:F—

—=FTA=1—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key source of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year from the
end of each reporting period.

(a)

Estimated impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment relating to the containerboard
segment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts.

As detailed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, there are impairment indicators of
the property, plant and equipment relating to the
containerboard segment at 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, the management assessed the
impairment of the property, plant and equipment
relating to the containerboard segment and determined
the recoverable amount of related property, plant
and equipment based on their fair value less costs
of disposal. The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair values of the
relevant property, plant and equipment. In determining
the fair values, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain key assumptions
and estimates. The Directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment subject to impairment
assessment were approximately HK$689,146,000.
Details of the impairment of property, plant and
equipment are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant
and equipment with respect to depreciation, the
Directors estimate the useful lives of various categories
of property, plant and equipment according to their
experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant
industrial norm. The useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed annually. If the expectations
differ from the previous estimates, the changes will be
accounted for prospectively as changes in accounting
estimates.

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Directors
would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and
compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective net realisable values based on latest market
prices and current economic conditions. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in determining such
allowance. If conditions which have an impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/improve,
additional allowances/reversal of allowances already
made may be required.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$22,068,000
(net of allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$4,480,000) (2022: approximately HK$31,292,000
(net of allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$4,310,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

5.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets of
approximately HK$6,522,000 (2022: approximately
HK$7,068,000) and approximately HK$30,703,000
(2022: approximately HK$51,107,000) in relation
to unused tax losses and the deductible temporary
difference arising from the impairment of property,
plant and equipment have been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position,
respectively. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
on the tax losses and deductible temporary difference
of approximately HK$124,074,000 (2022: approximately
HK$167,290,000) and approximately HK$200,165,000
(2022: approximately HK$170,802,000), respectively,
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. The realisability of
the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future, which is a key source
of estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit
or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

An analysis of the Group's revenue by type of goods is as
follows:

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BR—F_—F - A=1—HILFE
Wz ko EBER

EFERWENDF

AEERERBENKESTMOT

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE

2023 2022
—Z—-= —E=-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx T
Sales of corrugated packaging EiEBEEE 224,357 424,411

The Group applies the practical expedient that information
regarding the transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers is not
disclosed as the original expected duration of the contracts is
less than one year.

Segment information
The Group's manufacturing operations are located in the PRC.

The Group's operations are organised based on the type of
products. Information reported to the executive directors
of the Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is analysed based on
the type of products. No operating segments identified by
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
are categorised into the manufacture and sale of:

° Containerboard — corrugating medium and linerboard

° Corrugated packaging — corrugated paper boards and
carton boxes

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WmRDIER @)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) PEBER (&)
Segment revenues and results T E 2 R A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBIZEE N 2,0 AP H) Y et & A 1 40
results by operating and reportable segments: i
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLLEE
Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Segment total Eliminations Consolidated
e REa% AH@ O &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THR FHR THER TR
REVENUE g
External sales HMAE - 224,357 224,357 - 224,357
RESULT ES
Segment (loss)/profit HH(ER) /&7 (84,075) 10,258 (73817) - (73,817)
Central administrative expenses R R{THER (23,089)
Finance costs HBRA (3,555)
Loss before taxation HiEE (100,461)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

Wik 2 AR E R ()

2EEHR (B)
BEW R R ()

HE_ZT-_—_F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Segment total Eliminations Consolidated
FAMR A R A% DEbEE 5 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THL THT
REVENUE K
External sales MBS - 424411 424,411 - 424,411
Inter-segment sales PEEHE 31,711 - 31,711 (31,711) -
Total @5t 31,711 424,411 456,122 (31,711) 424,411
RESULT E |
Segment loss PEER (120,361) (41,026) (161,387) - (161,387)
Central administrative expenses P R{THER (23,662)
Finance costs BB (6,188)
Loss before taxation TAlEE (191,237)

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the reportable
segment information are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each segment
without allocation of central administrative expenses and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates

No revenue from any single customer contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BHE T —Ff—A=1+—HIFZE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEkDEBER #)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEER (&)
Other segment information Et 7 & #
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or FEHIFEKEERAEE 2
loss:
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZE-_=F4+-A=+—HLEE
Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Total
FRAE EBEE% Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET FTHExT
Interest income M B WA (182) (457) (639)
Depreciation of property, plantand #%¥ * lERREZITE
equipment 49,200 5,117 54,317
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 922 231 1,153
Allowance for inventories FERE - 263 263
Wiritten off of accruals and other i SH PE AT B A e H At FE AT
payables %18 (2,738) (18,210) (20,948)
Impairment loss on the deposit paid YEEY%E - BiE RKER
for the acquisition of property, Niz& 2 BIEEE
plant and machinery 15,684 - 15,684
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ TS+ _-_A=1+—HIEE
Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Total
MR AR TS B 5% #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT T T
Interest income B WA (408) (1,735) (2,143)
Depreciation of property, plantand #% * BB kX E2ITE
equipment 53,433 7,731 61,164
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEAEZITE 970 8,745 9,715
Allowance for inventories FERE - 3,678 3,678
Impairment loss on property, plant  #12 « = & & 1E 2 BE
and equipment &8 = 6,953 6,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WHmkDIER @)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEER (E)
Geographical information HEEX
The following table sets out information about (i) the Group’s TRV EBOANEBIZE MR ENHE 5 2
revenue from external customers by location of delivery IRBFRBERNAEBIZREEMEHEE D 2
destination of the goods and (i) the Group's non-current IERBEEZELR :
assets by location of assets:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
HREF = FRBEE
Year ended 31 December At 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE R+t=—A=+—H
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= = —_=E-= —EF -
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT THET FHIT
PRC i 224,357 424,411 738,922 789,838
Hong Kong B - - 1,393 17,960
Macau B - - 885 893
Philippines JFAEE - = 154,617 172,139
224,357 424,411 895,817 980,830
Segment assets and liabilities P EEERERE

The measure of the segment reporting of the Group reported
to the CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment does not include any assets and
liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are
presented.

AEHEIELERREFERIERRBANE 2
RzAKELBRERL EFATAEEREE -
At WEZ2I D HEEREE -

EEEEERBRAR o —T_=FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. EHaWA
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
2023 2022
—E=5 —=E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH T T
Interest income FIEWA 639 2,143
Scrap sales BEIEE 799 501
Service income i3 N 1,875 4,706
Others HApi 3,400 3,593
6,713 10,903
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMRERER
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—-HLHEFE
2023 2022
—EC=8 —E -
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
Net exchange loss B 3 B 15 (209) (4,570)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and HEMFE  WMEREEZ
equipment (B518) /Ikzs (514) 281
Written off of accruals and other payables (Note) i 55 /& 51 2 F & H b & 1 5008
(B E) 20,948 —
Impairment loss on the deposit paid for the WM BERKRBENiEE
acquisition of property, plant and machinery 2 B(EEE (15,684) -
4,541 (4,289)

Note:

The amounts are mainly attributable to the accrued staff costs and
other expenses provided by a subsidiary of the Company in prior
years. This subsidiary has undertaken a voluntary deregistration
process during the reporting period and has ascertained its
indebtedness as at 31 December 2023, resulting in the written-off
of the accrued staff costs and other expenses over-provided in prior
years. This subsidiary was deregistered subsequent to the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

9. OTHER EXPENSES 9. HMpX
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—-RHLEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Other PRC taxes E i B 518 1,792 4,093
Value-added tax payments (note 30(a)) AT (MIFE30()) - 23,628
Depreciation e 53,562 57,264
Legal and professional fees FERBEER 2,907 1,678
Others Efh 4,160 3,325
62,421 89,988
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAFE R A
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—RHLEE
2023 2022
—EB-=F =~
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Interest on: AT&EZFHE :
Bank borrowings RITEE 3,510 5,922
Lease liabilities HEEE 45 266
3,555 6,188
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11. FTEHMAX
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E=F —E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Current tax: BNHARH I8 :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMEH 363 53
Underprovision in prior years — Hong Kong BEFEREBETIR BB
Profits Tax IS - 154
363 207
Deferred tax (note 27) EEFIA (K #E27) (20) 1,281
343 1,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

11.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profit Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

No provision for Macau Complementary Tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits arising in Macau for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. One of the
Company's PRC subsidiaries was awarded with the High and
New-Tech Enterprise and entitled to preferential rate of 15%
for the Group's financial years ended 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

11.

FREHMAX @)

BIEBRSFERMAHFERES  AEREE
H B2 7 12,000,000/ 7T i Al 145 #28.25% < i K 125
i+ B 182,000,000 7T 2 i ) Bl 3216.56% 2 Fi
REHF - TRAMBHNFESHEHERZEEE
e SR A A B 1216.5% < 2] —Fi REH - AL
AEREBER ZBEFEH DIRAER R
F #2,000,0005% 7T 2 8.25% =1 & » Ml &t FERRFL
s M #B382,000,00078 7T All1£16.5 %51 & -

HE_ T -k -_F-_—_F+-A=+—HI1t
FECAEEVERBMBERTREE  RE
BAEBEWERNRPEEERR R -

RIBRBOEMETE ([DEREHZE]) RO
RSB EEMIED - BB AR 2 HERMRIE
FEANB25% ° AR RH—E BB QA RA
EEBEE T -_=F+-_A=t+—BEk=-Z_—
F+ A=+ BULEUBREEAZEaFHEMD
¥15%MEBEERE -

FERBERXEGABEREMEEKERMR
BRER 2 BRI T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT T
Loss before taxation TRIEE (100,461) (191,237)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% EBEBFSTHHE165%
(2022:16.5%) (ZZ==F : 165%)7TEZ
fiiE (16,576) (31,554)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 78R 1 Uk A 2 i 75 5 22 (522) (423)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TR IR 2 B &
purpose 5,896 9,508
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference RERAEINEFEEZR 2
not recognised s E 2,697 1,738
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBBE BB E 19,442 40,305
Tax effect of undistributed earnings of the PRC ~ FREINEB R R R IRAEF 2
subsidiaries MG & (5,860) (3,736)
Effect of tax different tax rate of the PRC R B 8 A R R TS [R) 2 i 22
subsidiaries (4,638) (14,444)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETIR - 154
Income tax at concessionary rate LABEE RGN HFTEH (96) (60)
Income tax expenses for the year FEMESHAZ 343 1,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE—E =1 - A=1—HIIFE

12. FEEIE

FEBREHRGEA) THISRA :

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE

2023 2022
—EC=F —E-
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T T T
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BERREZITE 54,317 61,164
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRHEEEZITE 1,153 9,715
Total depreciation mEBE 55,470 70,879
Less: Amount included in cost of inventories B ET AR BT 2
recognised as expenses FEKRATEE (1,908) (3,900)
53,562 66,979
Staff costs BT
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EE=/< (F15E13) 13,143 15,175
Other staff costs E b8 TR
— salaries and other allowances — ¥ e REMER 42,695 55,116
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — R FIET 84 R 5,096 10,419
Total staff costs BT AT 60,934 80,710
Less: Amount included in cost of inventories B AR ERY Z
recognised as expenses FERAGHE (8,473) (13,772)
52,461 66,938
Impairment loss recognised on property, BRERAIZUE BEKR
plant and equipment as expenses H 2 B E
(included in cost of sales) (T ASHERA) - 6,953
Allowance for inventories FE#EE GrAHEEKA)
(included in cost of sales) 263 3,678
Net impairment loss recognised/(reversal of EHEEEEEXTZ
impairment loss recognised) under expected EHERREEE(BEHER
credit loss model EEEREE) - FFE 174 (151)
Auditor's remuneration % EET B & 1,500 1,900
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERBRIZ Z2HFEKAR 210,166 406,383
ALUEBIERERAA o —T_=FFR 135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
EE—F A= —HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2023

13. EERFETHRAEMERESHMH

BE=E
BE-_ZE_=F+-A=1+—HLHFE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme  Share-based
Fees other benefits contributions payments Total
&% BEER  URHES
Bt Ht3g A ST ZXH ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET Tz TR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Hui Sum Ping THRERE - 6,915 18 - 6,933
Mr. Hui Sum Tai THRREE - 5,613 18 - 5,631
- 12,528 36 - 12,564
Independent non-executive directors BUHNTEE
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (note (i) & B A () 187 - 9 - 196
Mr. Wong Chu Leung AR EE 187 - - - 187
Mr. Chau Suk Ming ERBALE 187 - 9 - 196
561 - 18 - 579
561 12,528 54 - 13,143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

13. EBERTETHAEMERESEHM 2

BEE#)
BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme  Share-based
Fees other benefits  contributions payments Total
He R RIREH  URMDEA
ik Hib SRR Z¥E wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THT THT THT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Hui Sum Ping FRFLE - 8,054 18 - 8,072
Mr. Hui Sum Tai FRRILE - 6,513 18 - 6,531
- 14,567 36 - 14,603
Independent non-executive directors BUHRTEE
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric (note (ii)) B A 5 A (BRI 150 - - - 150
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (note (i)) &R (MR 37 - 2 - 39
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BRSLAE 187 - - - 187
Mr. Chau Suk Ming B 187 - 9 - 196
561 - " - 572
561 14,567 47 - 15,175

EEEEERBRAR o —T_=FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE T
13.

—=FfA=f—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Tso Sze Wai was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 October 2022.

(ii) Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 October 2022.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and Group and the independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown were for their
services as directors of the Company. During the year, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office and no director waived any
emoluments.

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2022: two) were Directors whose emoluments
are set out above. The emoluments of the three (2022: three)
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$2,438,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,951,000), representing salaries and other benefits
of approximately HK$2,384,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,901,000) and retirement benefits scheme contributions
of approximately HK$54,000 (2022: approximately
HK$50,000), for their services rendered to the Group. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, emoluments paid to the
three (2022: three) individuals fell under the band of HK$Nil to
HK$1,000,000 (2022: HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000).
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(i) ERMEEENR TS __F+A-tHEZEA
RRBBILIFRTES o

(i) HREEFER-ZT-__FTAZTHHELR
BB IFITES -

ARBRETBARARRITRAEER R EXFARE
ZHeE BREAHETRESRERBAZEEZ
M -

EXRORTEEME I REREERNRA R
AEBEBORBEME - FIRHBLIFNTES
ME D RSEAAARESTMERRENOME -
FR AEEREINETHE FTHESEER
REENMASERENAREE 2 RESHER
HEEREES  TEEFRETOME -

3=

AKBAMERBFHMALSR - Hb R (ZF==
FmiD REE HEZHME R EXHT -
BE-F-=F+-A=+—ALFE HT=

N(ZE——F : =f1) AL 2B & % 52,438,000
BT (2T = —F : #91,951,00087T) * BEMLE

ZMAEERUBRBAEZE2HE REMENL
2,384,000/ 7T (==& = — £ : £91,901,000/% 7T)
MR REFIET B 454,000 L (= FE ==
4950,000/8 7T) ° ai_j__iwL A=+—H
EFE INFF=N(ZT=Z=F: =) ALZ
Bl & a’ug/%ycitooo,ooo,%x%ﬂ%u (===
& T ITLZE1,000,00087T) ©



14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDEND

No dividend was declared or proposed for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

R E
HE_T-_ =+ -_A=+—RAK=-ZT=_=

T-A=ZT - RALFEIESRIFEERE - 8
HERRTERRAERRS -

BRIER
ARAREE ARG SRER R EEHRTEAT
B E

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-BLEE

2023 2022
—EB-=HF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Loss BB
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss &+ & &A% & A K #5EEE 2
per share &8 (100,804) (192,725)
Number of shares BB
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for &t & & A% E A & #585 E548
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share 3% HI4E F 5 817,644,000 817,644,000

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 did not assume
the exercise of the Company's share options as the exercise
price of these options was higher than the average market
price for shares for both 2023 and 2022.

BE-_ZEZ-_=f+-A=t+t—BR=ZZE=-=
T AT HBLEFENEREFSENGEL
BERJTEARANERE ER-ZZ-_=FK
ZECF  ZEEREZOEESRKRMD 2T
BHHE -

SEEEERBRAR o —T_=FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE

Furniture, Plant,
Factory Leasehold fixtures machinery
premises land and Leasehold and office and Motor  Construction
in the PRC buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELH HENE HR-$ER  BE BB
HERE i £ kB BOERR E hE HRIR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THETL Tin AL AL THn AL TEL
COST BA
At 1 January 2022 R-E-~%-f-H 496,992 23,752 75,844 18,445 1,864,661 14,553 18,132 2,512,319
Exchange adjustments EiA% (42,283) (872) (5,304) (1,024) (155,540) (519) (1618) (207,160)
Additions R - - 259 158 2217 - 17 2,651
Disposals e - = (150) (76) (306) (256 = (789)
At31December2022and ~ WNZE-—F+-F=t-H
1 January 2023 R=FZ=%5-8-H 454,709 22,880 70,649 17,503 1,711,032 13,778 16,531 2,307,082
Exchange adjustments EiAZ (8,955) (185) (1,084) 210) (3257) (%) (343) (43443)
Additions b - - 64 17 8,386 12 2 8,481
Disposals k3 = = (3527) (731) 40,627) (1,115) - (46,000
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=%+-A=1-H 445,754 22,695 66,102 16,579 1,646,220 12,580 16,190 2,226,120
ACCUMULATED RERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 R-F-—#-f-H 275,924 6,667 65,173 15,591 1,190,621 14,197 - 1,568,173
Exchange adjustments EHAE (23,587) (260) (#.711) (849) (96,839) (512) - (126,758)
Charge for the year EENR 18418 1824 4513 553 35,683 73 - 61,164
Impairment loss recognised in -~ RIETEA 7 HERE
profit or loss - - - - 6,953 - - 6,953
Elimination on disposals HERTH - - (150) (69) (305) (256) = (780)
At31 December2022and ~ RNZE-—F+-f=t-H
1 January 2023 R=E_=%-f-H 210,755 8,231 64,825 15,26 1,136,013 13702 - 1,508,752
Exchange adjustments S (5,388) (46) (1,015) (182 (20,907) %) - (27,633)
Charge for the year FENR 17,459 1,646 3,287 4 31,432 Ul - B4317
Elimination on disposals HERTH - - (3,520) (632) (37,424) (1,115) - 42,591)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=E+ZA=1-R 282,826 9,831 63,577 14,934 1,109,114 12,563 - 1,492,845
NET CARRYING VALUE BEFE
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=£+-A=1-A 162,928 12,864 2,525 1,645 537,106 17 16,190 733,275
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-A=1-H 183,954 14,649 5,824 2,271 575,019 76 16,631 798,330

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Factory premises in the 4% or remaining lease term of
PRC the land element, if shorter
Leasehold land and 4% or remaining lease term of

buildings the land element, if shorter
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%

office equipment
Plant, machinery and
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

3.33% —33.33%

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets relating to
containerboard segment

With reference to the Company’s annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the annual inspection of the
licences of three coal-fuel boilers of a factory of the Group
that expired in mid-October 2021 has been delayed due
to the consideration of the environmental policies of the
local government of the Guangdong Province regarding the
prohibited zone where the factory is located. The Company
has temporarily suspended the production operation of the
factory since October 2021. The Directors consider that
the temporary suspension of production relating to the
containerboard segment was not due to any violation of laws
or regulations, but a voluntary action taken by the Group.
Since the temporary suspension of production, the Group
continues to coordinate with the local government for the
annual inspection procedures of the licences for the coal
fuel boilers to resume production and, in parallel to proceed
with the project to change its boilers from coal-fuel boilers
to gas-fuel boilers. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group continued to coordinate with the local
government to proceed with the inspection procedures of
the licenses pursuant to the relevant environmental policies.
Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the inspection procedures of the licenses were yet to be
completed.

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

16. W¥ - - BMERRXE®)

EaE  BERREEE (ERIERINNE
SERATERFE -

FEEE A%, T Bl 5 2 fR T HA
(AEE & A%)

e REF A%3L T B 5 2 R T HA
(AERE & %)

HEMEEE 20%

B HBRPFD  10%

=RE

BB - MESRERME  3.33%-33.33%

RE 20%

EEREIBEANNE - MERRBERE
REEEZBE

RBERDNTNHEE_E_—F+-_A=+—8HIt
FEZEHR AEEMEMELRENEREE
HEBFTRARBUR - NEERE RN = & R E
ERFEBN T —F+ AR B BT - &
AR -Z-—F+AREERELREZEE
BE-ZERE ARESPEREETEER
EEBISIRG] - HEBRAER G BRI TE -
BEREENR  NEEEERRERIEERBSE
HIRFEEMEFRFANRELE  WRSHEE
HAKRERARRRAENIEE HE_T ==
F+-A=+—HLLFE  ~AEEEBRIEHEE
RABRLEREREFEEHRTHA - #2
ZERAMBHRER A ERFERFHARTRK

BEEBEERBRAR o« —T_=—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE

16.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

—E = F A= HIFE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets relating to
containerboard segment (Continued)

Due to the temporary suspension of production relating to
the containerboard segment and its unfavourable financial
performance during the current year, the management
of the Group concluded that there were indicators for
impairment and conducted an impairment assessment on
the containerboard segment-related property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$689,146,000 and HK$17,073,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2023. The recoverable
amount of these assets has been determined based on their
fair value less costs of disposal measured by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for land in nearby
area (level 2 fair value measurements) and depreciated
replacement cost for factory premises, plant, machinery
and equipment (level 3 fair value measurements) by Roma
Appraisals Limited, an independent professional valuer. The
carrying amount of the relevant property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets relating to containerboard segment
does not exceed the recoverable amount, and no impairment
loss is recognised during the year (2022: Nil).

At 31 December 2023, the Group's property, plant and
equipment with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$163,615,000 (2022: Nil) were pledged for the Group's
bank borrowings (note 25).
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ME - BERRE &)
REREIBEBENNE BERRBRE
REEE 2 REN &)

HRERESDEEZEETREERAFEEH
BRENME  A5EEEBERAFERETR -
YR —_E-_=F+_A=+—HEAES A
689,146,000/ 7t K2.17,073,000/8 7t 2 L8 1R 4% 5
HEBRYE  BERZEREAREEERET
REN G - EREBEFERAEEFETKRAILER G
SHEEEEMA R E S ER  AEEGBFTEEM
BRECELEMMAKECE ZEEE AN
ElGHEABLEEGHEMESHEFHEERA
AIRBEEAFEREEXNAMEE  WREHR
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T F fE) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:nv_\éﬂjﬁiﬁ% MT.I-?II

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FHAREE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HE L i HEWE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—_F—HF—H 21,559 9,881 31,440
Exchange adjustments PE 3 A (1,780) (424) (2,204)
Depreciation provided for the year 4 & 37 & B (569) (9,146) (9,715)
At 31 December 2022 and R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H
1 January 2023 —E-=%#—H—H 19,210 311 19,521
Addition R - 1,221 1,221
Exchange adjustments b 7, 5 & (366) - (366)
Depreciation provided for the year  FE T &£ &5 (544) (609) (1,153)
At 31 December 2023 RZBE-_=%+-_A=+—H 18,300 923 19,223
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2023 2022
-8B -= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Total cash outflow for leases HERS LA 636 9,678
For both years, the Group leases certain warehouse and MERN - AEEAREZLERES T2 EREi
ancillary office properties for its operations. Lease contracts AYE -HEAGHNUNEES AHAEMNKTL - 8
are entered into with fixed monthly lease payments for a RETEA—ZMF o HE T/ (85I E 7 E e
fixed term of 1 to 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an I 8 B 18 A (R A 3R B A o
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.
In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings o AREBEESE TEZEREERFEFIEHA
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located TXEFNEFE AEEBAZEWHFER (B
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner of REBEE L) MEMES A - BIRATEL —
these property interests, including the underlying leasehold RERRIARBZE Y HEER - EEFZ R
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire BN S kN ZEEEVENEE LD

these property interests. The leasehold land components of FAEBE5 -
these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

SEEBEERARAR o —T_=—FFRK 143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$1,227,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,293,000) were prepayments under processing

17. FRAREE®)

T -

=

arrangement which represents the prepaid amount for land HHENEEE -
use rights.
At 31 December 2023, the Group’'s right-of-use assets with N_E =

the carrying amount of approximately HK$17,073,000 (2022:
Nil) were pledged for the Group's bank borrowings (note 25).

=+ -A=+—HB KAEEZFEH
& EE R B FE #91,227,00078 7T (
1,293,000/ 7T) Z I T&ZHEFE 5N

——F: g

— =

/33 A

=¥ +-A=+—8 AEEREEA
#917,073,0008 T (ZE_—F : ) 2 FHEE
EDRKFUNRESAERE ZRTES (H:E25) -

18. INVENTORIES 18. FE
At 31 December
R+t=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=fF —_E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Raw materials B 21,834 31,001
Finished goods SUAK R 234 291
22,068 31,292
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EZRHMERIRIE
At 31 December
R+=-—BA=+—H
2023 2022
—s=-= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T
Trade receivables & 5 W RIE 38,695 51,056
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEERERE (867) (836)
37,828 50,220
Other receivables (note) H b jE Y 5K B (KT =E) 9,770 10,114
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R HEAMEWEIE BT 47,598 60,334
Notes: As at 31 December 2023, the balance included an advance WM RZE_=F+=-A=+—H8 &HBEEXFT

to Batangas Paper Corporation (“Batangas”), an independent
third party to the Group, amounting to approximately
HK$8,136,000 (2022: approximately HK$8,309,000), which is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows credit periods ranging from 5 to 120 days
to its trade customers which may be extended to selected
trade customers depending on their trade volume and history
of settlement with the Group. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit losses
presented based on the invoice dates, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period:

19.

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

B2 REMEYRRIR @)

AEBERTEHEFLEI120BEEH  BAIUR
BRTESIREFHEAZEB 2 EH=E RBANHE
B T AERZEER - T ARREHARER
BEAH (RS E 2 WAHER B BN NBREE
BIEREEMZ7 28 5 EREIE 2 BRI DT

At 31 December

R+t=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E=-= — T

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 30 days 30H A 24,839 32,000
31 - 60 days 31£60H 12,228 17,441
61 —90 days 61£90H 578 737
Over 90 days 90 A E 183 42
37,828 50,220

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an external litigation search to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits on a
customer-by-customer basis. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed monthly.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with an aggregate
gross amount of approximately HK$13,856,000 (2022:
approximately HK$19,083,000) which were past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, approximately
HK$867,000 (2022: approximately HK$835,000) has been
past due 90 days or more. The past due amount relates to
a number of independent customers that have good trade
and payment records with the Group. There has not been
a significant change in the credit quality of the relevant
customers and the Group believes that the balances are still
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The average age of these receivables is approximately 62
days (2022: approximately 43 days) based on invoice dates.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 35(b).

EEMEAHERR - NEBESRAIEBFRE
R AMEEREERPZEREERRABEEFR
REEERE -BEZEERBELFIRETAE
HAgES o

R-E_=F+_A=+—HH A&EBzESE
WRIR A S B 156 5T 458 A %)13,856,0007% 7T
(=ZZT = =4 : 4919,083,000/8 7T) Z FE U FIA
ZEFRERRESACAG -CBHLELRT > QO
867,000/ 7T (=& = =4 : #9835,000/ 7T) & %8
HBAQOABKIA k- ZEEBBRIBERSZ A MAEE
RERTEIRNREHZBIRTFER - 25
BEEZEEGEVESANE AAREBEIBED
AIWEIEMES  AEEVERZELEHRMITE
EE AR o

RIFRZAH  ZSERFIBBHTHEREK Y 562
A(ZZT =4 : 4438) °

BB 5 K E b R IRR (B R h 2 715 SR
#35(b)

BEEBEERBRAR o« —T_=—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

20. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

20. EERFANK

At 31 December

R+=-—BA=+—H
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T

Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant BEYE BEMMERZZS

and machinery (note (a)) (Pt 3E(@@)) 117,850 121,151
Prepaid insurance fees B IRERE A 674 820
Other prepayments and other deposits (note (b)) H fth T8+ 7% & H A2 % (M35 (b) 47,952 48,865
166,476 170,836

Provision for impairment losses B EIE R (15,492) =

Total deposits and prepayment e RIBNREE 150,984 170,836

Analysed into: DI

— Current assets —mEBEE 7,665 7,857

— Non-current assets —ERBEE 143,319 162,979

150,984 170,836

Notes: Bt o -

(a As at 31 December 2023, deposits of approximately (@ WMZZE-_=F+-A=+—H FREHEHREL
HK$112,858,000 (2022: approximately HK$114,376,000) FR AR ERABBIZ S 475112,858,0007 7T (=
relating to the installation of a pulp production line at the T = — 4 : 49114,376,0005 7T) © £ A - SR H
manufacturing plant in the Philippines. During the year, given BBURRZABRRRITEMSHFHEL  ESRE
the geopolitical tension and fierce market competition in the HEFREREHTEAREERNER LA
industry, the Directors decided to postpone the process of HER-_E-_NEE T - AFHBREEE -
installing a pulp production line at the manufacturing plant in
the Philippines and are expected to resume progress between
2024 and 2025.
In this regard, the management of the Group conducted an it AEEEBREBYH MR T -_=F1+=-A8
impairment assessment on the aforesaid deposits paid as at = t+—BZENMRESETRERS G  WRERRE
31 December 2023, and an impairment loss of approximately ARREET1E 4915,492,000/8 T °
HK$15,492,000 was recognised during the year.

(b) In 2019 and 2020, the Group entered into a series of (b) RZZE—NEFER=_F_ZFF ' A& B HEBatangas

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

agreements with Batangas. Pursuant to the agreements,
the Group agreed to prepay start-up funds of an aggregated
amount of Renminbi (“RMB"”) 37,520,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$40,961,000) (2022: RMB37,520,000
equivalent to approximately HK$41,828,000) as at 31
December 2023 to Batangas to offset against the payment
of the subcontracting fee or operating fee for managing the
manufacturing of the pulp plant of the Group in Philippines
upon the commencement of the operation.

e Annual Report 2023

SN — RO o RIEZEHE  AREREM
BatangasTEf ¥ E & - R=ZT=_=F+=A8
=t+t—HBEHAARK (TAR%]) 37,520,000
(FB&E R 440,961,000 70) (ZE==4F : AR¥
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates from
0.001% to 1.610% (2022: 0.001% to 1.610%) per annum.

Included in the carrying amount of the Group's bank balances
are following amount denominated in currencies other than
functional currency of the relevant group entities:

21.

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

RITEBRRRE

IRITHERR IR IR 1T 35 F F %0.001% £1.610%
(ZZE =4 :0001%%E1.610%):t 2 °

AEBRTEHBZEEAERE TIAEREERE
BIDREEBEUIIN 2 ERINE 2R

At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
RMB AR 272 186
United States dollars (“USD") Zx([ZEx]) 12,570 6,148
HK$ BT 256 4,321

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22.

EZREMEMNRE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=5F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Trade payables B 5 e 5IE 27,483 25,540
Payables for the acquisition of property, plant BEWE KELK
and equipment 2 FERTRIE 3,121 4,244
Other PRC tax payables JE 1Y L At R B 5 IE 12,576 28,898
Accrued charges (note) FERTSZ H (FitaE) 46,758 58,224
Other payables M fE S FRIE 2,513 2,979
92,451 119,885
Notes: Major items in accrued charges are accrued salaries and Mizk : ESt YT EEB AESHERTE °
wages.

BEEBEERBRAR -

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BHE T —Ff—A=1+—HIFZE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 22,

23.

24,

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

The suppliers of the Group grant credit periods ranging from
30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the
credit time frame. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice due date at the end

of the reporting period:

BEZREMENRIE )

AEBEZHEBHREN FI0EW0ANEEH - A
SEFTEVBRRERBK - ARRPTA %
BEHEEEHRAFBE - THARBEMRER
HZINH RN 27 2 B BN FIR 2 R DT -

At 31 December

R+=BR=+—8H

2023 2022
—E-=H T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T T
Current BN &R 15,776 13,674
Overdue 1 to 30 days #HI1E=30H 38 13
Overdue 31 to 60 days # HI31E60H - 5
Overdue for more than 60 days w60 H A 11,669 11,948
27,483 25,540
DUE TO A DIRECTOR 23. ENESENE

The advance is interest-free, unsecured and has no fixed

repayment terms.

LEASE LIABILITIES

24.

ERBRREE  BERLEEREENRY -

HERE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=5F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: ERNEESE
Within one year —FR 611 304
Within a period of more than one year but not R—FUA L ETHBMER
more than two years HE A 323 -
934 304
Less: Amounts due for settlement within B RREIAaEYRZ
12 months shown under current liabilities +— @A NE|HR
BESH (611) (304)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months RIERBDBEIRZ
shown under non-current liabilities +_EARIBEESE 323 -
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to HEBEMAMER INRE RS &R A RN F

lease liabilities range from 4.2% (2022: 3.0% to 5.0%).

e Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. BANK BORROWINGS

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

25. BITEE

At 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2023 2022
Effective interest rate —EC=F —F=-=
BRA=E HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH T
Bank loans —~Secured BITER-FHEM  3.93% t03.99%
(note) (F3E) (2022: Nil)
3.93%%£3.99%
(ZZE——&F: &\) 72,831 -
Bank loans -Unsecured  $R1T7E X — &M  Nil
(2022: 1.16% to 4.34%)
(ZE==F:1.16%%4.34%) - 98,105
72,831 98,105
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E_=fF =T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Carrying amount repayable*: [EEEREE :
Within one year —F R 52,959 2,230
More than one year, but not exceeding two —F L\ FETBBRE
years 1,092 95,875
More than two years, but not exceeding five MFE LA EETBRAF
years 18,780 -
72,831 98,105
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B RREAENRZ
under current liabilities —FRNEHEEE (52,959) (2,230)
Amounts due after one year shown as RIETREBEEFN T2
non-current liabilities —FRI SR 19,872 95,875
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * B DNRERRER BRI TETENH
out in the loan agreements. HAEEF o
As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the bank KRB _=F+-_A=+—BR=_ZFE=_—F+=
borrowings carry interest at floating rates, thus exposing the A=+—8 RIOTEBEERZHF XL - Bt R
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rates are SEEFRERSREMNERRAR - ZEFREHH

linked to PRC Loan Prime Rate (“LPR").

ERMSREMNE ((ERTIHREME]) H3

Note: At 31 December 2023, the Group's bank borrowings were sk - RZBEZ_=F+_A=+—H K&EBEZRTT
secured by pledges of the Group's property, plant and fi& B LA #7017 £ 8] BR T (B 491 63,615,000 7T (=
equipment with the carrying amount of approximately T —F EZYE BRELMREBELEAEEYD
HK$163,615,000 (2022: Nil) and right-of-use assets with the 17,073, 0008 T (ZEZZF - |) 2L AREEE
carrying amount of approximately HK$17,073,000 (2022: Nil). VEAIKIR o

AUEEZRARDT o —T_=F4RK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A&
Number of
shares Share capital
g ¢ &N
‘000 HK$'000
TR FHEIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREEI10E T2 T BN
Authorised: VEERRA
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and R-E-_—_F—H—H8 -
31 December 2023 —E-_—_F+=-H4
=t+—BRZZEZ=F
+=—A=+—H 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBRRA
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and R-_E-_—_F—HF—H8 -
31 December 2023 —E-_—_%+—-AH4
=t+—HEZZT==
+=-—A=+—H 817,644 81,764
27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. EEHE
The followings are the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) DAT%$%E§%’%§ZE@&IE?E/(£E) B
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the AREFERAEREFE 2 ZD -
current and prior reporting years:
Impairment Undistributed
of property, Accelerated earnings
plant and tax of the PRC
equipment Tax losses depreciation  subsidiaries Total
nE - BER Y A
REZAE HEFR MEREHRE ZRDKEF @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT TET TAT TAT TAT

At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F—H—H (60,185) (9,542) 60,246 17,761 8,280
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss EBEGrA) /mek 3,874 1,695 (552) (3,736) 1,281
Exchange adjustments B 5 A% 5,204 779 (5,328) (1,426) (771)
At 31 December 2022 and R-ZEB-=%F
1 January 2023 +-A=+-HRK

“Z-=%#—-fF-H (51,107) (7,068) 54,366 12,599 8,790
(Creditl/charge to profit or loss T8 GrA) /Mmk 19,583 404 (14,147) (5,860) (20)
Exchange adjustments I 5 A% 821 142 (950) (190) (177)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F

+=-A=+-H (30,703) (6,522) 39,269 6,549 8,593
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27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$167,566,000 (2022:
approximately HK$213,324,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$43,482,000 (2022:
approximately HK$46,034,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
approximately HK$124,074,000 (2022: approximately
HK$167,290,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. All unrecognised tax losses will expire in the years
ranging from 2025 to 2027. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has deductible temporary differences
arising from the impairment of property, plant and equipment
of HK$342,979,000 (2022: HK$375,232,000). A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$122,814,000 (2022: HK$204,430,000) of such deductible
temporary difference. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining approximately
HK$200,165,000 (2022: HK$170,802,000) as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to selected participants for
their contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including
executive or non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors), of the Company, its subsidiaries, or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer
of the Group or any Invested Entity, and any consultants,
advisers, managers, officers or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group or
any Invested Entity.

27.

28.

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
ECFCCF A= HIEFER

TR IE (4)

REEHR AEEERSAREBEBELD
167,566,000/ 7T (= F = — £ : 49213,324,000/5
7)) AT EH R 2E F) o B Bha% B3 18 943,482,000
BT (Z T = — 4 : #746,034,000/8 7T) FERIE
EHBBEE BAREZXEBRKEFNR I
42 5 $A BB 49124,074,0008 T (Z T = —F : 4
167,290,000/ t) R ELEFHIBEE - FT A A 1E
ROMEEREN _E_AEE T - +FHH
B RMEMER  AEERAME - BEREHE
BB E AE Y ] I 0 B B 1 £ B A342,979,00078 T
(Z= = —4 :375,232,00087T) ° 2 LA B ATE
MEREZR4122,814000 BT ( -4 :
204,430,000/ 70) ERIELERIEEE - AR T A
AREESERN N AERNTSREEZE
B 4 Bt 4 58 49200,165,000/8 T (ZF = —
170,802,000/ 7T, ) M RIEIE T IE & & ©

RBFECEMEIOE  BRRDATEMELQ
AR ZZENFE-A - HRARRZAEmE IR
Z IR B o

LU 2 F 22

ARARER T —=FNA = Afit/ERRAER
A ([ZFH8))  TEBENARBAEEELR
BzEE2BEEFRBBIEE -

REBEZFE - ARREZGARARF - M E
R AR EB AR E A BB E AU 2 1A
BE(FRERED 28 ERER (BRHUTE
FRFRTEFIHELIFNTES) KL BE -
ANRBEARAD - B AR BEARE
B T EM A AN B 2 IR B A R S AR
BRERBRUHEVIIRB 2 EMHER  T5E
FEMAIRERB 2 EMNEP  UARAAREERK
EAMEERBRHENT  REIEMRME
RIS 2 (E A BAA - B - K8 SRBE S
1 o

EEEEERBRAR o —T_=FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

b — 55—

28.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of the passing of the ordinary
resolution for adoption of the Scheme. The number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised at any time under the
Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders in accordance with the Scheme.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their respective
associates would result in the shares in the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with a value (based on the closing price of the shares
of the Company at the offer date of each offer) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such grant of options must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders in accordance with
the Scheme.

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to
be determined and notified by the directors to the grantee
and in the absence of such determination, from the date
of acceptance of an offer of the grant of such option to the
earlier of the date on which such option lapses and ten years
from the date of offer of that option. A consideration of HK$1
is payable upon acceptance of the offer.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the nominal
value of the share; the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer; and the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer.

e Annual Report 2023
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE—E =1 - A=1—HIIFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 28. URHBEZFzXH#®)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TEREBELRESNHMEERE Z AN A R
options held by the directors and other employees and ARZEBRERFAZ ZEFE
movements in such holdings during the year:
Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at
Date of Exercise 1 January during 31 December during 31 December
Option type grant price 2022 the year 2022 the year 2023
R=B=Z% R-B-=F
R=B=Zf& t=H +ZA
-A-H Sr=[ =+-H
BEREER gzl fifEE i RATE EREK R E EREKR e RATE
Granted under Scheme
REZEIR L
Option type G 15.10.2018 0.435 17,636,000 (4,884,000) 12,752,000 (250,000) 12,502,000
G R
Exercisable at the end of the
year 12,752,000 12,502,000
RERTATR
Weighted average exercised
price 0.435 0.435 0.435 0.435 0.435 0.435
MEFAER

The vesting period, which is the period from the date of
grant to the exercisable date, of the share options granted
is determined by the Directors at each time when the
options are granted. Holders of share options granted under
the Scheme may only exercise their options during the

exercisable periods as follows:

Option type G
GEEBERE

RhBkEscBBMARHARERTER B
B THEENBARLBRERET - RIEX
AERLZBREZRAAERRATAITES

7T {5 L i B

Maximum% of share options exercisable

ATEERERS DL

Vesting periods:
BB

15.10.2018 - 30.4.2019
15.10.2018 — 30.4.2020

15.10.2018 — 30.4.2021

Exercisable periods:
AIATE EAA :
1.5.2019 - 30.4.2026
1.5.2020 - 30.4.2026

1.5.2021 - 30.4.2026

up to 50%
= AIE#50%
up to 75%
Fi= Al E75%

up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

&5 A E100% (A MARITEEAR)

BEEEERBRAR

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
The fair values of the share options at the grant date were

calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

28. URHB I Gzt

REHARZBRENAFEDER ZBAER
HE - ZBEAZBABBNT

Share price on the date of grant R B Z R (E HK$0.427% 7T
Exercise price T{EE HK$0.4357% 7T
Expected volatility TE BRI 60%
Expected life from date of grant B B AR TE AT A 0.5 - 7.5 yearsE
Risk free rate = 3 f ) R 2.42%
Expected dividend yield TEET R B = 1.78%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company's 875-day share prices before the
date of grant. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on the management’'s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

BHKERIEA QR RE L B EIA18750 #ifE 2

BRENBEZKEETE 2R ER 2B FH

EREEERTAEENL TERHRITRAKE
FEEL ZREMBAE -

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EXREE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2023 2022

—EBE-=F -z
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition WHEBE REENEARH L
of plant and equipment

— contracted for but not provided — BRI AERERE 45,063 48,802

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e Annual Report 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Tax issues of a subsidiary in the PRC

(a)

Tax issue in relation to the value-added tax invoices
received from certain suppliers

As referred to the Company’s announcement dated 17
March 2023, Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial
Limited GRE(EHMAEBR A 7A]) (“Green Forest
Paper”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, received (a) a decision on tax treatment
dated 20 May 2022 (“Tax Treatment Decision”) and
(b) a decision on administrative penalty dated 20 May
2022 (“Tax Penalty Decision”), each issued by the
Second Investigation Bureau of Qingyuan District
Administration of Taxation of the State Administration
of Taxation (“Qingyuan Tax Bureau”) (BT EE
RIS HE —FEER) (collectively the “Decisions”),
in relation to 1,073 value-added tax (“VAT") invoices
(the “VAT Invoices") received from six suppliers of the
Group (the “Six Suppliers”) in 2013, 2014, 2017 and
2018 for the total invoiced amount of approximately
RMB742,707,000 (consisting of price for product
purchased of approximately RMB636,940,000 and
VAT of approximately RMB105,767,000) and the tax
deduction made by the Group in relation thereto.

Based on the Decisions, the VAT Invoices were
found to be irregularly issued by the Six Suppliers,
therefore Green Forest Paper was required to make
up the tax payments amounted to approximately
RMB109,142,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$127,057,000), comprising the VAT of approximately
RMB85,450,000, other taxes and surcharges of
approximately RMB10,064,000 and the Enterprise
Income Tax of approximately RMB13,628,000
(collectively the “Outstanding Tax Amount”), as
well as a late payment at a daily rate of 0.05% on
the Qutstanding Tax Amount from the date such
Outstanding Tax Amount was due until the date of
actual payment. In addition, Green Forest Paper was
also required to pay an administrative penalty in the
amount of approximately RMB44,070,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$51,304,000).

30.

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

EE_—Ff—H=1—HIFE

FARRIAKE

TEMNELRNHEEE

(a)

BRETHREBEEHRENHIEEE

BUARARIBHA-_ZT-_=F=A+tH
MRS ARARMEEEZEWNERQ A
REGBH BEERAG ([RELKZE]) K
QB A—ZE-_—_FRAA-+tHHNHKE
BEIATE ([REEREIRTEZ ) A(b) B &
BZE - _EFRA-tTHNTRESRAE
E(RBEEIRAEE])  DlABERBB
REEmHERE —_EER (BEHERE])
LR (FEBOAEE]) - W Kk1,073RIEER
(MEER]) BZE(EERER])  KRZZ
—=F —_E-—NUF - —_T—+tFRK_F
—NFEAREER A BEER ([ ~BHER]D)
WERR B E S A T A AR 742,707,000
7T (B E MR B R4 A K #636,940,0007T
T EF 4 A R #105,767,0007T) K& A&
B B UL 1E A B TR0 -

BIEREE AR BEERE R
BEHRZEE ARREAETEFEOAR
#109,142,0007T (18 & 7 %9127,057,0007%
JL) BB EEER 4 A R #85,450,000
JC ~ H A FEIE KT A0 & %9 A R #10,064,000
TR IEEMERAHARY13,628,0007T (5
BIREBZK])  UARBRABHAEHZ
BREEEBRIMNZBL BRAARRNET
HO.O5% MLt RN E NS o 1L I HRE
MENSEIMNTHEISIRNDARE
44,070,0007T (#8% 1 4951,304,000/ 7T ) °

LEFEERAERAR o —E-_=FFR

155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

fr:F—
i

—=FTA=1—HIFE

30. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Tax

(a)

HOP FUNG

issues of a subsidiary in the PRC (Continued)

Tax issue in relation to the value-added tax invoices
received from certain suppliers (Continued)

Upon receiving the Decisions, the Directors, after
seeking legal advice from the Group’s PRC legal
advisor, considered that the Outstanding Tax Amount
and the administrative penalty imposed under the
Decisions lacked factual and legal support. Hence,
Green Forest Paper has taken various actions to object
to the Decisions.

The Tax Treatment Decision

In early August 2022, the Group submitted the
tax payment guarantee application by post. On 18
August 2022, Qingyuan Tax Bureau replied in writing
that it would not accept the tax payment guarantee
application of Green Forest Paper because the
application was made beyond the application deadline.
On 20 August 2022, Green Forest Paper disagreed with
the decision of Qingyuan Tax Bureau not accepting
the tax payment guarantee application and therefore
applied for an administrative review with Qingyuan Tax
Bureau relating to this rejection. On 20 October 2022,
Qingyuan Tax Bureau decided to uphold its decision of
not accepting the tax payment guarantee application.

On 7 December 2022, Green Forest Paper filed an
administrative proceeding against Qingyuan Tax Bureau
at the People’s Court of Qingxin District, Qingyuan
City, Guangdong Province (ERA/FERM sHEARZE
Bt) (“Qingxin Court”) to request for a revocation of the
decision on not accepting the tax payment guarantee
application. Pursuant to the administrative judgement
dated 19 April 2023 from the Qingxin Court, the request
for the revocation was rejected but the Group has the
right to appeal within 15 days from the date of the
judgement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Tax issues of a subsidiary in the PRC (Continued)

(a)

Tax issue in relation to the value-added tax invoices
received from certain suppliers (Continued)

The Tax Treatment Decision (Continued)

Subsequently, the Group filed an appeal against the
aforesaid judgement at the Intermediate People’s Court
of Qingyuan City, Guangdong Province (BREG®RM
A A REBT) (“Intermediate Court”). Pursuant to the
judgement dated 5 July 2023 from the Intermediate
Court, the Intermediate Court concluded that the
appeal was rejected, and the administrative judgement
dated 19 April 2023 was upheld.

On 10 August 2023, the Group filed a retrial application
against the judgement dated 5 July 2023 at Guangdong
Higher People’s Court, Guangdong Province (BR& S
MAEERT) (“Higher People’s Court”). On 14 August
2023, the Higher People’s Court accepted the Group's
retrial application and will proceed with the retrial
hearing if it considers the case meets the grounds and
conditions for retrial after the verification procedures.

Up to the date of the consolidated financial statements,
the Higher People's Court was still processing the
retrial application.

The Tax Penalty Decision

On 22 August 2022, Green Forest Paper disagreed
with the Tax Penalty Decision and applied for an
administrative review with the Guangdong Province
Administration of Taxation of the State Administration
of Taxation (“Guangdong Province Tax Bureau”)
(ERHBEREREHBER). On 23 August 2022,
the Guangdong Province Tax Bureau accepted the
administrative review of the Tax Penalty Decision.
On 8 November 2022, the Guangdong Province Tax
Bureau decided to uphold the Tax Penalty Decision.
On 24 November 2022, Green Forest Paper filed an
administrative proceeding against the Guangdong
Province Tax Bureau and Qingyuan Tax Bureau at the
Guangzhou Railway Transport Court (& /1 & & & ARR)
to request a review of the Tax Penalty Decision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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30. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Tax issues of a subsidiary in the PRC (Continued)

(a)

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Tax issue in relation to the value-added tax invoices
received from certain suppliers (Continued)

The Tax Penalty Decision (Continued)

In order to apply the administrative review application
to the Guangdong Province Tax Bureau, the Group
paid a certain portion of the Outstanding Tax Amount
of approximately RMB20,297,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,628,000) and recognised in
"Other expenses” during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Pursuant to the administrative judgement dated 30
June 2023 from the Guangzhou Railway Transport
Court, the decision of administrative review made by
the Guangdong Province Tax Bureau on 8 November
2022 to uphold the Tax Penalty Decision shall be
revoked, but the Guangdong Province Tax Bureau has
the right to appeal within 15 days from the date of the
judgement.

The Group subsequently received a summons from the
Guangzhou Railway Transport Intermediate Court (M
IR EE P A APT) dated 2 November 2023, in which
the Guangdong Province Tax Bureau filed an appeal
against the administrative judgement dated 30 June
2023. The appeal hearing was held on 13 November
2023, and no order was made from the court up to the
date of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Tax issues of a subsidiary in the PRC (Continued)

(b)

Tax Matter Notice

On 8 February 2023, Green Forest Paper received
a tax matter notice (“Tax Matter Notice") issued
by the Second Branch Bureau of Qingxin District
Qingyuan City Administration of Taxation of the State
Administration of Taxation (“Qingxin Tax Bureau”) (4
ABBRRBEM ENRREEE —H%5B). Based
on the Tax Matter Notice, since the tax credit level of
Green Forest Paper was adjusted to D-level for the
assessment years from 2015 to 2020, as a result,
Green Forest Paper has to pay the previous VAT refund
amounted to approximately RMB32,070,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$37,334,000) for the period from
July 2015 to October 2020 according to the relevant
regulations.

Pursuant to the Tax Matter Notice, in case Green
Forest Paper disagrees with the Tax Matter Notice,
Green Forest Paper must pay the outstanding VAT
within the prescribed period or otherwise provide the
relevant tax payment guarantee on the outstanding
VAT. Once the VAT payments or the tax payment
guarantee is confirmed, Green Forest Paper may
submit an administrative review application to the
Qingxin Tax Bureau within 60 days from the date of
the tax payments or confirmation of the tax payment
guarantee. Green Forest Paper completed the tax
payment guarantee procedures and was confirmed by
the Qingxin Tax Bureau on 23 March 2023.

On 7 April 2023, Green Forest Paper disagreed with
the Tax Matter Notice and applied for an administrative
review with the Qingxin Tax Bureau.

On 2 June 2023, the State Administration of Taxation
Qingyuan City Qingxin District Taxation Bureau (EZX
g maEm aEMER) issued an administrative
review decision stating that the Qingyuan Tax Bureau
shall revoke the Tax Matter Notice and re-handle it in
accordance with the applicable laws.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

30. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Continued)

Tax issues of a subsidiary in the PRC (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, there was no further development
with regard to the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice as at
the date of the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors are of the view that no provision of the relevant
tax amounts concerning the Decisions and the Tax Matter
Notice as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 as stated in
the above should be provided on the basis that the Group
is in the process of making appeals against the relevant
judgements and the judgements on the Tax Penalty Decision
and the Tax Matter Notice received by the Group up to the
date of the consolidated financial statements were favourable
to the Group. However, the results of the appeal applications
made by the Group and the appeal applications made against
the Group were not yet available up to the date of these
consolidated financial statements, which led to significant
uncertainties regarding the extent and financial impact
arising from the Decisions and the Tax Matter Notice on the
consolidated financial statement of the Company.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Hong Kong

The Group has joined the MPF Scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the scheme.
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n'l_\é/ﬁ\zri%ﬁ%% Mq-?li

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Continued)

PRC

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees to the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme contributions
amounted to approximately HK$5,150,000 (2022:
approximately HK$10,466,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The remuneration of directors, who are the key management
of the Group, during the year are as follows.
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-ALEE

2023 2022

—EB-=HF —_ T
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx T T
Short-term benefits EHEIE A 13,089 15,128
Post-employment benefits BRE 54 47
13,143 15,175

The remuneration of executive directors, who are also the key
executives of the Group, is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

(a) The cash flows represent the proceeds used for addition/
repayment of bank borrowings, repayment of lease liabilities
and interest paid in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

e Annual Report 2023

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33. RIEEB2EEHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’'s liabilities TERFAVNAEEREB EH 2 BEES  BIERS
arising from financing activities, including both cash and MRS BHETHELAZABNEERS
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities MERAKRERENAEBLARERERT
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will SEAMETEHIRESREZAE -
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Bank
borrowings
Due to a Lease and interest
director liabilities payable Total
A+ RITEE
EEXNE HEERE REMAFE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT FET FHBT FABT
At 1 January 2022 R-—ZE-_—_F—HF—H - 10,065 227,187 237,252
Financing cash flows (note a) BmERRE (MFa) = (9,578) (122,661) (132,239)
Interest accrued FEET IS - 266 8,159 8,425
Exchange adjustments b 5 - (449) (14,455) (14,904)
At 31 December 2022 and NZTE-__F
1 January 2023 +ZA=+t—Hk
—E_=%—A—H = 304 98,230 98,634
Financing cash flows (note a) mEHR ST E (i) 1,381 (636) (27,072) (26,327)
Addition o - 1,221 - 1,221
Interest accrued JEETFIE - 45 3,610 3,655
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 3A % (16) - (1,748) (1,764)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=%F
+=—A=+—H 1,365 934 72,920 75,219
Notes: MiaE -

(@) RERBEEARSRERPHELR HEER
TEE EEEEREMENMENMEHR



34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the lease liabilities and bank borrowings disclosed
in notes 24 and 25, respectively, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

34.

35.

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE—F_=F+-A=1T—HAITFE
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TRTA
a. ERMIE>ZER

At 31 December

R+t=BA=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-=fF —_E-—

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHT
Financial assets HHEEE

Financial assets at amortised cost BHENATEZYBEE 94,970 172,478
Financial liabilities HHEE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost REER AT 22 M aE 113,302 138,793
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, lease liabilities and bank
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The Directors manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(1) Foreign currency risk

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets
and monetary liabilities

A significant portion of the Group’s sales is
denominated in RMB and a significant portion of
the Group's purchases is denominated in RMB
and USD. The Group’s manufacturing operations
are located in the PRC.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain bank
balances, trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables and bank borrowings are
denominated in the foreign currencies of the
relevant group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging foreign exposure should the
need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE—E—=F+—A=+—HIFFE

35. €M IT A @)

Financial risk management objectives and b. HXEREEEERBEXEE)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5 E B ()
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) () SRR ()
Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets IEPTEINE BB EE B A F (&)
and monetary liabilities (Continued)
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of the RBEH AEENEBREEBRTES
Group's monetary assets and monetary liabilities BUAMEEEE AN B TIER S
denominated in currencies other than the BEMEEGEZREENT :
respective functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE a&
At 31 December At 31 December
Rt=A=t-H Rt=A=+-8
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=HF - —E-=F —_E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFAT F#ET FHT
RMB AR 261 186 -
HKS BT 256 4,321 - 2
usD I 12,570 6,148 9 9
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis INEEBURRE D AT

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. A sensitivity
rate of 5% represents the assessment of the
Directors of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency-denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates.

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact
relates to monetary assets or liabilities that are
denominated in RMB, HK$ or USD against the
functional currencies of relevant group entities,
HK$ or RMB respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. €I R &)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HXEREEEERBEEE)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5B ()
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) () SEEE (E)
Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets IEPTEINE B EEHE T A E (&)
and monetary liabilities (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued) INE SRR i (48)
In relation to monetary assets, where the REBEEMS  WHEBEEERE 2
functional currency of the relevant group entity e EE R EEMFENTEZ S
strengthens 5% against the currency in which B85% ' A FEREEEB AijJD(:
the assets are denominated, there would be ?__i Mg EsEE M) - " 3L
an increase in post-tax loss (2022: increase in EEEaEmE  (WiE Eﬁ%@ﬁﬁazm
post-tax loss) for the year. However, in relation eSS B EMREMATECEETE
to monetary liabilities, where the functional 5% ' AIFEREEBEEERD (ZF
currency of the relevant group entity strengthens T F FEEBERY) o Mg E ﬁ%
5% against the currency in which the liabilities B E%  BIFEREER(ZE -
are denominated, there would be a decrease in F:HEER) @23 ER&EENR
post-tax loss (2022: decrease in post-tax loss) RZE -
for the year. A 5% weakening of the functional
currency would have an equal but opposite
impact on the post-tax loss (2022: post-tax loss)
for the year.
RMB Impact USD Impact HK$ Impact
)\Eﬁg ge ;752?/5 BT ?\/E
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
M+=B=1+-H R+=A=1+-AH M+=B=1+-AH
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZE-=f ZE--F ZBC-=Zf —T-__F CZB-ZE _—T__&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAL TEL FAL TER FHL
Increase in post-tax loss (2022: GigEREn (S -_—F:
Increase in post-tax l0ss) HBEREM) (1) 8) (524) (256) (1) (180)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to lease liabilities (see note 24 for
details) and cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 25
for details of these borrowings), bank balances
and deposits. The Directors consider that the
interest rate risk on bank balances and deposits
is minimal, accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of LPR arising from the Group’s borrowings
denominated in RMB.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivatives instruments. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. An increase
or decrease of 50 basis points represents the
assessment of the Directors of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. For the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank borrowings, if interest rates had been 50
basis points higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss
(2022: loss) for the year would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$304,000
(2022: increased/decreased by approximately
HK$410,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
interest rate risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

e B wRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, bank balances, other receivables and
deposits. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets, except that the
credit risks associated with some trade receivables
are mitigated because the settlement of certain trade
receivables is backed by bills issued by reputable
financial institutions.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors have
delegated a team responsible for the determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under the ECL
model on trade receivables individually or based on a
collective assessment. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas, and thus the Group does not have a
significant concentration of credit risk.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for
credit-impaired debtors with a gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$867,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: approximately HK$836,000), the Group
determines the ECL on the trade receivables that are
not credit-impaired with a gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$37,828,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: approximately HK$50,220,000) under collective
assessment, grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to past default experience
and current past due status of debtors.

As part of the Group's credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ past due status to assess
the impairment for its customers because these
customers consist of a large number of customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, an
impairment loss under the ECL model of approximately
HK$174,000 (2022: reversal of impairment loss
under the ECL model of approximately HK$151,000)
is recognised for trade receivables. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

35.

b.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE T

—=FfA=f—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances by
reference to information relating to the probability
of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the Directors
make a periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The Directors believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and
deposits with a gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$9,870,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
approximately HK$11,462,000) was insignificant and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35. €M IT A @)

b. MBEAMREEBEEREE#E)

=B AR B ETE ()
B ERAE L E (F)

AEENAMEERRFHERIINEEAT
B

Other financial

rating Description Trade receivables assets
W EBE &R =3 B 2 EWIE Hig B & E
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired ~ 12m ECL
default and does not have any
past-due amounts
{iWE RGUFEHNRRE TEEME 2HEHEEBE-BEERE 12@8EBEE
HiFRIE g
Wiatch list Debtor frequently repays after due  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired  12m ECL
dates but usually settle after due
date
BREaE BEEABERIBHRESEE & 2HEREEEE-SE8RE 12@AEHEE
BERINPERES (g
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — not
increases in credit risk since credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed internally
CIR~ FRAABEEZEN  FERRE 2HEHEEBEE-EEERE 2HEHEEER
)56 T R A 2R B S8 35 AN —BiEERME
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired Lifetime ECL -
asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired
BB BEBRAZEEELREENE 2HEHEEBERE-—HREERHE 2PEHEEER
—HBREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written
the debtor is in severe financial off
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
i sH EBRBBERNMEBAEBREVMBE  FRIE T LA FRIE T DA 85
B ANEEEWEKRIE B E A
2]
EEEEERBERAR o ZTZ=FFR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BHE T —Ff—A=+—HIIFZE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

Internal credit

35. €I R &)

b. MBEMREEBEEREEE)

=EERER B ETE ()
B ERABERIZE (B)

TRHFAIEFELETHBEEBENG
MAKEHRBEENEERR :

Notes  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
ABEE 12EAR2HES
Pt A FEESR EEAHE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-8
2023 2022
—B-c=E —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THx
Financial assets at
amortised cost
NBHRATEZ
BHEE
Trade receivables 19 Note Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 37,828 50,220
(collective assessment)
2 S WA P sE 2HRHEERE - BEEERA
(BEEATE)
Trade receivables 19 Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 867 836
2 S EWE BB 2HRHEESE-EERE
Other receivables 19 Low risk 12m ECL 9,770 10,114
H oo fE 1A iyl 128 A B EER
Deposits 20 Low risk 12m ECL 100 1,348
®e EER 128 A B EEE
Bank balances 21 Low risk 12m ECL 47,272 110,796
RITHEER [y 12[8 AEBEEEE
Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the izt : MESEWREMS AEBCEAES

simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors that are
credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on
these items on a collective basis, grouped by past due
status.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

35. €I A&

b. MBEAMREEBEEREE#E)

EERERR B A (F)
B ERAE L E (F)

TRETRBECHZEEBNEZ R

ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables RIEHEEFEREEES :
under the simplified approach:
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
2 HFE
FEEE
(FERE)
HK$'000
FHTT
At 1 January 2022 R-_E_—_F—H—H 1,076
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE (151)
Exchange adjustments PE i F & (89)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HK
—E-=%-A—A 836
Impairment losses recognised BEERIREE B 174
Written off W 54 (125)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 FH 2 (18)
At 31 December 2023 R-_ZE-_=%+-_HA=+—H 867
AESEERERAR o —T-=FF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE—F_=F+—A=1T—HITFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan repayment terms.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. The Group monitors its current and
expected liquidity requirements regularly and ensures
sufficient liquid cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from reputable financial institutions to meet
the Group's liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment-on-demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Br—FE = f=+—HIFF

35. €M IT A @)

b. MEEEREERFEREX®E)

mEBEZmE ()

nBEE RSB

Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
effective  or less than 1t03  3monthsto undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month month(s) 1year 1-2 years 25years  cashflows amount
mETH REXS, -EARZ =A% ARRE
ik -fBAR =f8A - -EERE  WEZELE b=t BREfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
THIL T Tk TiEn ThT AT TiEn
Asat31December2023 W=F-=%
TZA=t-H
Trade and other payables ~ BHREMERNTE NATER 39,106 - - - - 39,106 39,106
Due toa director L OEES Y NATEH 1,365 - - - - 1,365 1,365
Lease liailties HEafE 42 53 159 424 326 - 962 934
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate —%8 40 175 19 54,899 1,854 19,202 76,859 72,831
40,699 888 55,323 2,180 19,202 118,292 114,236
As at 31 December 2022 e —
+-A=1-R
Trade and other payables ~ EZREGEMNTE  NATER 40,688 - - - - 40,688 40,688
Lease liabilities HEAE 36 53 159 98 - - 310 304
Bank borrowings RITMEE
- variable rate ~1%8 4.2 293 633 5,326 99,753 - 106,05 98105
41,034 842 5,424 99,753 - 147,083 139,097

The amounts included above for non-derivative financial
liabilities with variable interest rate are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end

of the reporting period.

FEfER - AAERBRIETEMBRE (2%
BHR) NESRAEHERE

SEEEZERBERAR o« —T_=FF% 175



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. €I R &)
c. Fair value c. 2DFE
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of FEERAGRE T TRER A A 5K AN R 8%
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at CHBEERVEAEZRAERE QAT
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BERE -

approximate their fair values.

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. ARQTFBBARR R FEER
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2023 2022
—EB-=F —EF -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Non-current assets RBEE
Interest in subsidiaries AN IENGIPA: $ 1,316,553 1,358,004
1,316,553 1,358,004
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments B RFER 545 444
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 283,976 330,236
Bank balances and cash IRITEMEIR S 5,384 14,308
289,905 344,988
Current liabilities REAEE
Other payables and accrued charges H e 5B N E R S 13,561 13,464
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN 1,094,290 1,084,022
1,107,851 1,097,486
Net current liabilities REBEEREE (817,946) (752,498)
Net assets EEFE 498,607 605,506
Capital and reserves BARG#HE
Share capital A% A 81,764 81,764
Reserves ] 416,843 523,742
498,607 605,506
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e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. ARAHBMRR R AR E)

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
AARZ FEEBFEBIHINOT -

Details of the movement of reserves in the Company are set
out below:

Share Share options Retained
premium reserves profits Total
R = E BRERE 1R B8 7 E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT FHIT FHT
At 1 January 2022 R
—H—H 492,392 3,663 51,347 547,402
Loss and total comprehensive 4 [ E518 K& 2 H 5 X
expense for the year Fk - - (23,660) (23,660)
Transfer upon forfeiture of Y8 UK B S A 1% e
share options - (1,100) 1,100 -
At 31 December 2022 and R-ZE——
1 January 2023 +ZA=+—8k
—ZT-=
—H—H 492,392 2,563 28,787 523,742
Loss and total comprehensive 5 [E &8 & 2@
expense for the year B 4a%a - - (106,899) (106,899)
Transfer upon forfeiture of V8 W P8 R e 1 B
share options - (50) 50 -
At 31 December 2023 R -_=F
—A=+—H 492,392 2,513 (78,062) 416,843
EEEEERBERAR o ZTZ=FFR 177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F - A=1—HIFFE

37.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

FENBLAER

R =F+-_fA=+—"BER_T-_—F+—
A=t—BZ2=xZEWBRARFRBOT :

Place of
incorporation Issued and fully
or registration/ paid share capital/ Equity interest attributable to
Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital the Group Principal activities
EMAL/ BRARBERE/
WEARER EXH BlRA rEEEERTES TEREH
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2023 2022
“E-cE “E-—F
% %
Fung Kong Shing Fung Paper Ware Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Factory Limited
BEAEEREERAR B LRRIET REEMHK
Green Forest Paper (note) PRC Contributed capital 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of
US$112,247,803 containerboard and corrugated
packaging
REGE (W) HE EARA RREREFaREZERES
112,247,803% ¢
HF Industrial (Philippines) Corporation Philippines Ordinary shares Philippines 100 100 Operation not yet commenced
Pesos 200,000,000
FaE £ E7200,000,000 HARIREE
FEERR
Hop Fung Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Provision of management service
RLBERERAH B LRRIET REEEERE
Hop Fung Group Company Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares US$600 100 100 Investment holding
(“BVI")/Hong Kong
ERERES & AR600E T REER
(2ERZ#E)/
B
Hop Fung International Enterprise Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Provision of accounting service
RLEREEERAA B LRRIET et et R
Wah Wang Paper Ware Limited Macau Ordinary shares 100 100 Trading of corrugated packaging
MOP100,000 and procurement of raw
materials
EEOAmARAT 2P LRk AEeEzEARENH FE
100,0001F5%
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

e MR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE T =F—A=1—HIFFE

FENBLIAER @)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation Issued and fully
or registration/ paid share capital/ Equity interest attributable to
Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital the Group Principal activities
EfAL/ BRARMERST/
MEAR LR e b BaR%E ARBEERT RS TEXH
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2023 2022
nt- Sy 3 —E-CF
0/0 0/0
FRERARBRAT hote) PRC Contributed capital 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of
HK$23,000,000 corrugated packaging
(Ft3E) Gkt EARE AFBEZHERES
23,000,000 7T
Hop Fung Paper Ware (Shenzhen) PRC Contributed capital 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of
Company Limited (& 2 &@0FY B R HK$25,000,000 corrugated packaging
A#l) note)
a84m R BRAR () e EARA AFEBEHERES
25,000,000% 7T

Note: Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited, RZs#E 54K
A BRAR] and HFPW are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Hop Fung Group Company Limited, all subsidiaries
are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 or at any time
during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
and assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length. At the end of the reporting period, the
Company has other subsidiaries that are not material to
the Group. These subsidiaries are operated in Hong Kong,
Macau, Southeast Asia, BVI or PRC.

Miat: RECEAEERARF  REEFAMERA
AkAgHER ORI ERARG RIEBEDRHK -

B Hop Fung Group Company Limitedh - B Fff
BRARMYHBAAARHERS -

RZE-_=F+-_A=+—HBEk=ZT=_—_F+=
A=+ — B3 MERETMER  SHBARHE
ERFENESES -

RS EERAH AR AR AEAEEY
2o AEENBEAT - EFAA  BEMMBEA
ARIETI G ERR TR A BEER -
ARAEEHAEEMETBEAZ EMHER
A REWBARRES RF - RED KB
A BBHELE -

SEEEERBRAR o —T_=FFH
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

PR

Year ended 31 December

BEZ+-A=+—-BLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—NE —E-EF —E-—F —E-CF —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAT FER
RESULTS ¥15
Revenue W 25 1,194,082 1,040,369 755,603 424,411 224,357
Cost of sales SHE R AR (1,078,828) (912,500) (1,127,114) (417,014) (210,429)
Gross profit (loss) EF(EH) 115,254 127,869 (371,511) 7,397 13,928
Other income H b g A 20,584 23,053 17,896 10,903 6,713
Other gains and losses Hiplas M EE (2,297) 4,052 12,793 (4,289) 4,541
(Impairment loss) net reversal TE HEEEBEBEXT
of impairment loss under ® O EEE) FE
expected credit loss model EIEE R FRE (551) - 1,817 151 (174)
Selling and distribution costs 4% & 7 SR AR (45,689) (38,137) (31,233) (18,752) (12,451)
Administrative expenses THHAX (83,662) (80,104) (77,477) (90,471) (47,042)
Other expenses Hipf (18,168) (21,417) (22,881) (89,988) (62,421)
Finance costs BTISRAR (6,189) (8,813) (8,440) (6,188) (3,555)
(Loss) profit before taxation Bl (&) 7 (20,718) 6,503 (479,036) (191,237) (100,461)
Income tax credit (expense) Frigfiikse (Fx) 12,799 (5,140) 56,249 (1,488) (343)
(Loss) profit for the year, RREEEAEEFEE
attributable to owners of (B518) F)E
the Company (7,919) 1,363 (422,787) (192,725) (100,804)
At 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—h&E —Z-ZTF —E-—& —T-—% —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET FHET FTER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 1,997,270 2,202,955 1,643,445 1,191,109 1,020,420
Total liabilities BwaE (465,987) (581,899) (393,870) (229,195) (177,528)
Total equity attributable to AATIER AE
owners of the Company Gy et 1,531,283 1,621,056 1,249,575 961,914 842,892
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